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Notice 

Notice is hereby given that the 30" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the members of CITIZEN INFOLINE LIMITED will be 

held on 30™ SEPTEMBER 2024 on MONDAY through through Video Conferencing (°VC")/Other Audio-Visual Means 

(*GAVM"), 12.00 rion to transact the following business: 

® ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1, To receive, consider and adapt the audited Balance Sheet for the year ended 31" March 2024, the Profit and 
Loss Account, the Statement of Change in Equity and Cash flow statement as at-that date, notes thereon and 

the reports of the Directors.and the Auditor thereon, 

pa To appoint director, Mr Mitesh A Jain (BIN -G3495847) who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment. 

3, To appoint a director, Mr-Sandeep Jain (DIN — 06932060) who retires by rotation and being-eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment. 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 14 August, 2024 

NOTES: 

1. Communication and updating of Communication records 
La, 

12 

3. 

LA. 

15, 

16. 

1.8. 

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IS-ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY / 

PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF SUCH A PROXY / PROXIES NEED NOT BE A 

MEMBER OF TRE COMPANY. Pursuant to the provision of Section 195 of the Companies Act, 2013, a person can 
actas proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) in number and holding In the aggregate not more than 

10 percent of the total-share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10 

percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appointa single person a5 proxy and 
such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. The instrument of Proxy in order to be 
effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, duly completed and signed, not less than 

48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. A proxy farm is annexed to this report Members may note 

that the Notice and Annual Report 2023-24 will also be available on the Company's website 

www.citizeninfoling.com and website. of the Stock Exchanges, Le. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com 
For receiving all communication (including Annual Aepart} from the Company electronically; 

a) Members who are holding shares in physical mode and who have not registered/updated their email address 

by sending copy of their share certificate, PAN card, mobile number through email ta the acc@infoline.com. 
it will be subject to-verification by the company 

bj) Members wha are holding shares in dematerialized mode are requested to register/update thelr email 
addresses with the relevant Depository Participant. 

The member representing more than one folio in same names (or same sequence of names. in case of the joint 

name) are requested to approach the Company's Registrar far consolidation of their folias into's single folio for 
simplification. 

The Securities and Exchange Board of india hasmandated Submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by 

every participant in the securitles market. Accordingly, Members holding shares in the dematerialized form are 

requested tosubmit the PAN to thelr respective Depasitary Participants, Members holding shares in physical farm 
can submit their PAN to:the Company/Reégistrar & Share Transfer Agent. 

All Members ere requested! to send a nomination for dach member folic to the Company's Registrar. 

SEBI has decided that securities of listed companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form. Given the 
above and to avail various benefits of dematerialization, members are advised to dematerialize shares physically 
held by them. 

. Corporate Members intending to-send their representatives-to attend the Annual General Meeting pursuant to 

Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, are requested to send to the Company,a certified copy of the relevant 

Board Resolution along with specimen signature of the representatives) authorized to attend and yote on their 
behalf at the Meeting. An appropriate Board Resolution must support proxies submitted an behalf of Corporate 

Members, 

Members holding Shares in Physical farm are requested to intimate immediately to the Registrar & Transfer Agent 
of the Company, M/s.LINK INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED, 5" Floor, 506 to 508, Amarnath Business Centre-1 

(ABC-1), Beside Gala Business Centre, Nr. St. Xavier's College Corner, Off C G Road, Ellis bridge, Ahmedabad-



380006, quoting the Registered Folia Numbers (a) details of their email ID (b) Change In theiraddress if any with 

the Fin Code Number. The company sends all the communications like an annual report, notice, etc. through email 

to the shareholders whose email id is available in the record of the company. 

2, Members are- requested to intimate to the Company, queries, if any, on the accounts al least ten days before the date 
of the meeting to enable the management to keep the required Information available at the meeting. 

3, The Equity Shares of the Company is listed at the Bombay Stock Exchange, Mumbai (BSE}, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 

Dalal Street, Mumbai — 400.001 (Company Code: 538726), The annual listing fee far the financial year 2029-24 has been 
paid to the Stock Exchange. 

we The Registrar of Members-and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will rémain closed from. 21" 

September 2024 to 30" September 2024 (both days inclusive). The Record date will be 20 September 2024_ 
5, Members/Proxies should bring the Attendance slip sent herewith duly filled in for attending the Meeting. 

6. A Statement under Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”), relating to the Special Business to 
be transacted-at the Annual General Meeting ("Meeting’) s-annexed hereto. 

ns in compliatice with the provision of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and clause 35B of the Listing agreement, the Company is 
pleased to provide members facility to exercise thelr right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the 
Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through E-voting services. The 

facility of casting the votes by members.using an electronic voting system from a place other than the venue of the AGM 

(remote e-voting} is provided by Central Depository Services Limited (CDSL). 

8, All the directors except Independent directors are interested in Resolution 4 and 5, 
9, Procedure for Remote E-vating 

4.1. According to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules; 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 fas amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020, 
and May 05, 2020, the Company is providing the facility of remote e-voting to its Members In respect of the 
business to be transacted at the AGM/EGM. For'this purpose, the Company has entered inte an agreement with 
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (cpst} for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the 

‘authorized e-Voting’s agency, COSL will provide the facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as 
well as the e-voting system on the date of the EGM/AGM, 

92. The Board has appointed CS Jolly Patel, PCS as scrutinizer for this Annual General Meeting, 

5.3. THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER: 

a) The voting period begins on 27" September, 2024 at 11.00 am-and ends on 29” September, 2024 at5.00 

pm, During this period shareholders of the Company, wha are holding shares elther in physical form or in 

dematerialized form, as-on the cut-off date (record date) of 20" September, 2024 may cast their vote 
electronically, COSL shall disable the e-voting module for voting after that. 

b) Shareholders who have already voted hefore the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting 

Venue, 

c) The shareholders'should log on to the e-voting website www evotingindia.com., 

dd) Clickon “Shareholders” module 

e) Now enter your User ID 

« For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, : 

« For NSDL: &.Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client 1D, 

«Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form.should enter Folio Number registered with the Company. 

“OR 
Alternatively, if you are. registered for COSL’s EASI/EASIEST e-services, you can log-in at 

httos://www.cdslindia.cam from Login - Myeasi using your login credentials. Once you successfully-log-in ta 
COSL's EASI/EASIEST e-services, click on e-Voting option and proceed directly t0.cast-your vote electronically. 

f) Next, enter the Image Verification a5 displayed and Click on Login. 
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B) Ifyou were holding shares,in demat form and had logged on to www-.evotingindia.com and voted on an 
earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used, 

h) Ifyou are first time user, follow the steps given below! 

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

PAN Enter your ten-digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable 
for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

® Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository 

Participant are requested to use the sequence number, which is printed on 

Postal Ballot / Attendance Slip / communicated by mail indicated in the PAN 
field. 

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mmyyyyy format) as recorded in 

Bank Details | your demat account, or the company records to login. 
OR Date of 

Birth (GOB) * ifboth the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please 
enter the member id/folia number Inthe Dividend Bank details field as 

Mentioned in instruction (vj, 

i) After‘entering these details appropriately, clickon “SUBMIT” tab, 

j) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen, 
However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ meou wherein 
they are required to enter their login password in the new password field mandatorily. Kindly note that this 
password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which 

they are eligible to vate, provided that company opts far e-voting through COSL platform. it is strongly 
recommended not to share your password with any other person and take the utmost care to keep your 

password. confidential. 

k) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions 
contained in this Notice, 

|). Click‘on the EVSN for the relevant Citizen Infoline Limited on which you choose to vote, 

m) On the voting page, you willsee "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and agalhst the same, the option “YES/NO” 

for Yoting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you consent to the Resolution 

and option NO lmplies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

n) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

6) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click of “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be 
displayed. if you wish to:confirm your vote, click on "DK", else to:change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and 
accordingly modify your vate. 

p) Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote, 

‘g) You can alse take a print of the votes cast by clicking onClick heré to print” option on the Voting page. 

r) Ifa demat account holder has forgotten the login password, then Enter the User ID and the image 
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 

$) Shareholders. can also-cast their vote using CDSL's mobile app “m-Voting”. The m-Voting app can be 

downloaded fram the respective Store, Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app during 
Remote Voting on your mobile, 

5.4. Process for those shareholders whose email address are not registered with Depositors 
Such shareholders can obtain their login credentials as follows. 
a) For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No,, Name of a shareholder, scanned 

copy of the share certificate (front and back}, PAN (seif-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self- 

attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to acc@infoline.com. 

Raye Be ot ind 



10, For Demat shareholders’-, please provide Demat account details (CDSL-16 digit beneficiary ID or NSDL-16 digit DPID + 

CUD), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account staternent, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), 

AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to acc@infoline.com.Members are requested to note that under 

Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange, brief particulars including shareholding of the Directors 
proposed to be appointed/re-appointed is given below and forms part of the Notice. 

By the Order of Board of Directors 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 14 August 2024 ead 

Reefia Shah 

Company Secretary 



Annexure {to the Notice 

NOTES ON DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE 28" ANNUAL 

GENERAL MEETING AS REQUIRED UNDER CLAUSE 49 OF LISTING AGREEMENT ENTERED INTO 

WITH STOCK EXCHANGES. 

Profile of Directors-heing appointment/ Re-appointment under Item Nos. 2 & 3 of the above Notice: 

Functional Area director in the company for Ten years. 

He is providing valuable support to the 
management of the company, 

Name of Director Mr. Mitesh Jain Mr Sandeep Jain 

Date of Birth a” November 1988 7 Aupust 1985. 

Date of Appointment 7 July 2014 7 july 2014 

| Qualification Graduate Graduate 

Expertise in Specific | He fs CFO & MBA and has been a | Hels an MBA and has been adirector in 

the company ‘for Ten years: He is 

providing valuable ‘support to the 

management of the company. 

Directorship in Other | Nil Nil 

Companies (Excluding 

Private & Foreign 

Companies) 

Membership/Chairmanship | NIL Nil 

of Committee (includes only 

the Audit Committee & 

investor Grievances 

Committee) 

Shareholding as on 31" | Nil Nil 

March 2024 

Oy the Order of Board of Directors 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 14 August 2024 

ie Shah 
Company Secretary 
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Directors’ Report 

To 

The Members, 
Citizen Infoline Ltd., 

Your Directors have great pleasure in presenting the 30" ANNUAL REPORT and the Audited Statement of Accounts of 
the Company for the year ended on 31st March 2024. 

« Fi Sie 

(2 in lacs) 

Particulars Amount for 2023-2024 F Amount for 2022-2023¢ 

Profit before Depreciation & Taxation o.79 0.92 

Less: Depreciation | Nil Nil 

Less: Provision for Taxation | Nil Nil 

Exceptional Items =— >} Nil Nil 
Net Profit after Tax 0.79 0.92 

*P Ri REVIEW: - 

During the year, the company witnessed growth of 165%:in its turnover. The Company has earned profit during the 
year. Your directors expects a’ better performance in the next year, 

* DIVIDEND:- 

The dividend payout for the year under the review has been formulated by the company’s policy to pay substantial 
dividend linked to long-term performance, keeping in view the company’s need for capital for its prowth plans and the 

intent to finance through internal accruals to the maximum, Your directors have always wished to appreciate the trust 
and faith of its members by paying them appropriate dividends. As the Company has not made enough profit during the 

year, Directors of the Company de net recommend any dividend in the current year. 

* PUBLIC DEPOSITS;- 

During the year under review, the Cormpany has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of 

Companies Act, 2013. 

. INSURANCE: 

All the existing properties, including Building, are adequately insured. 

* DIRECTORATE: - 

Under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 Mr. Mitesh Jain.and Mr. Sandeep Jain directors of the Company, who retines 
by rotation-and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment, Mr, Mitesh Jain and Mr, Sandeep Jain have offered 

themselves for re-appointment. Members are requested to approve their appointment. 

. SECR ST Hil 

The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards, |e. 55-1 and 55-2, relating to Meetings of the Board of Directors’ 
and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly followed by the Company. 

+ FORMAL EVALUATION STATEMENT 

Formal evaluation statement u/s 134(4)/p) of the Companies Act, 2013 is attached herewith to the report. The evaluation 
includes evaluation of board as a whole, individual director and of every committee of the board, The evaluation 
framework for assessing the performance of Chairman, Directors, Board and Cammittees comprises, inter-alia, of the 

following parameters: 

a, Directors bring an independent judgment on the Boards’ discussions: utilizing their knowledge and experience, 
especially on issues related to strategy, operational performance and risk management, 

b.  Directors:contribute new ideas/insights.on business Issues raised by Management. 

c. Directors anticipate and facilitate deliberations on new issues that Management and the Board should consider. 



d. The Board/Cammittee meetings are conducted in a manner which facilitates open discussions and robust debate on 
all hey items of the agenda. 

e. ~The Board receives adequate and timely information to enable discussions/decision making during Board Meetings. 

f, The Board addresses the Interests of all stakeholders of the Company. 

& The Committee ts delivering on-the Gefined objectives: 

h, The Committee-has the right composition to deliver its objectives. 

= AUDITORS: - 

M/s. Krutesh Patel & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad, Statutory Auditors of the Company have been 

appointed for the period of five year as per the provision of the Campanies Act, 2013. His appointment has heen effected 

from the commencement of this Annual General Meeting until the Conclusion of 33Annual General Meeting. Hence, 

Members are requested to reconsider (he reappointment of M/s. Krutesh Patel & Associates, Chartered Accountants as 

statutory auditor of the company for the period of Five years till the conclusion of the 33/7Annwual general Meeting, The 

board has received letter trom them to the effect that their re-appointment if made will be within limits specified u/s 

141{1)(g) of Companies Act, 2013. 

* AUDITORS’ REPORT: 

The observations made In the Auditors Report are self-explanatory and therefore; nead not require any further comments 

by the board of directors, 

* SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
In under Section: 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has appointed Ms. Jolly Krutesh Patel, Practicing Company 

Secretary to conduct the Secretarial Audit for the year 2023-24. The Board attaches-herewith secretarial audit report 
issued by Practicing Company Secretary in Annexure A to this report. There are no remarks:or comments in the said report 
which requires clarifications by the board. 

. Di d SiBy ATEMENT: - 

Under the requirement under section 134(4)(c) of Companies Act 2013, concerning Directors’ Responsibility Statement, 

it is at this moment confirmed, 

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed alone with 
proper explanation relating to maternal departures; 

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable dnd prudent to give a true and falr view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of 
the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period; 
{e) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records by the 

provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and fer preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on agoling concern basis; 
(a) the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate-and were operating effectively; and 
if) the-directors had devised Proper systems to ensure coaplianes with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

= PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: - 

During the year, there were no employees, within the organization, who received remuneration exceeding Rs.60,00,000/- 

p.a.or ifemployed for part of the year drawing remuneration of more than Rs. 5,00,000/- p.m. as prescribed. 

» RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
The Risk management policy of the company has been discussed in detail in the Management Discussion & Analysis 
Report, which forms part of this directors’ report, attached with the annual report. 



* INTERNAL T! 

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls concerning financial statements. During the year, such 

controls were tested, and no reportable material weaknesses inthe design or operation were observed, 

* PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES: 

All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related parties were in 
the ordinary course of business and on ar arm's length basis, During the year, the Company had not entered into any 
contract/arrangement/ transaction with related parties which could be considered material by the policy of the Company 
on the materiality of related party transactions. 

« CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:- 

The Company has generally |mplemented the procedure and adopted practices in conformity with the Code of Corporate 

Governance as equnciated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges. The Management Discussion 

& Analysis and Corporate Governance Report are made a part of the Annual Report, A Certificate from the Practicing 
Company Secretaries regarding the compliance af the conditions of the Corporate Governance is given in Annexure, which 

is attached hereto and forms part of Directors’ Report. 

* NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS 

During the year, the company had conducted a total of Eight board meetings, Notice for them was given properly, anda 

due quorum was present at the above meetings. The dates of the meetings are 01.04.2023, 08.05.2023, 18.05.2023, 
12.08.2023, 04,09.2023, 07/11.2023, 06.02.2024, 15.02.2024 & 31.03.2024, 

. INATION AN l ; 

The Board has formed a-nomination and remuneration committee as required under section 178 (1) of Companies Act, 

2013. The company has disclosed policies a5 required under 178 (3) of Companies Act in its Corporate Governance 
Statement, forming part of directors’ report. The Same can be accessed on website of the Company 

www. citizeninfoline.com 

* AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The Board has constituted Audit Committee as required under section 177(1) of Companies Act, 2013. The Composition 

of the same has been disclosed in the Corporate Governance report forming part of the directors’ report. During the year, 
the Board has agreed to all recommendations of the audit. committee. 

« GENERAL 

Your Directors state that no disciosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no 
transactions on these items during the year undey review: 

a) Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act. 
a) The issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or. otherwise, 
b) The issue of shares (including sweat equityshares) to.employees of the Company underany scheme save and 

except ESOS referred to in this Report. 

¢) Nelther the Managing Director nor the Wholettime Directors of the Company receive any remuneration or 

Commission from any of its subsidiaries. 
d) Ne significant-or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going 

concern status and Company's operations in future. 

Your Directors further state that during the year under review, there were no cases filed under the Sexual Harassment of 

Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal ) Act, 2013. 

Heap Lew Ge — 



* VIGH MECHANISM FOR DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES 

The vigil mechanism has been disclosed in detail in the corporate governance policy of the corapany which forms part of 
the Annual Report. 

. CON Th NOLOGY ABSORPTION AND EARNINGS AND 

The particulars relating to the above has been given to the Annexure C to Directors’ Report. 

. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: - 

Your Directors take this opportunity to acknowledge with gratitude for the trust reposed in the Company by the 
Shareholders, Investors and Readers/Customers, Corporations and Government Authorities. Directors of your Company 
specifically express their gratitude to the Bankers, which has extended their full support to the Company. Further, Your 

Directors also keenly appreciate the dedication & commitment of the Employees of the Company. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

(Omprakash Liain) (Ravindra O Jain) 
Managing Director Director 

DIN: 00171365 DIN: 00412684 

Place: Ahmedabad 

Date: 14 August 2024 
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Annexure A—Secretarial Audit Report 

' FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 317° MARCH, 2024 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 

The Members, 
Citizen Infoline Limited 
(EIN: LE7120G/1994PLC024561) 
411, Sakar ll, Ellis Bridge, 

Ahmedabad — 380 006. 

| have conducted a secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 

corporate: practices by M/s. CITIZEN INFOLINE LIMITED (CIN! L67120G)1994PL0023561) (hereinafter called “the 

Company") during the-financial year from: 1" Apri! 2023 to 31% March 2024 (“the year” / “audit.report” / “period under 
review), The Secretarial Audit was conducted ina manner that provided me with a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
Company's corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company and.also the information provided by the Company, its officers; agents-and authorized representatives 

during the conduct of the secretarial audit, the explanations,and clarification given to us. | hereby report that in my 

opinion, the Company has, during the audit period ended.on 31.03.2024, complied with the statutory provisions listed 

hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanisin In place to the extent, 

in-the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter; 
| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms, return filed and other records maintained by the Company 
for the financial year ended 31° March 2024 according t6 the provision of; 

() The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made thereunder: 
(iil) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(lv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 to the extent-applicable in respect of Foreign Direct Investment and 
Gwerseas Direct Investment, 

(v) The Following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 
(‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable to the Company: 
(a) Securitles and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements} Regulations, 2015; 

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 21111; 
id) The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulation, 2008; (Not 

Applicable to the Company during the Audit, period) 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Registrars to an issue and Share Transter Agents) Regulations, 1993 

regarding the Companies Act, dealing with a client; The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; 

(f] The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share-based Employee Benefits] Regulations, 2014; (Not Applicable 
tothe Company during the Audit period) 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable to 
the-Company during Audit period) and 

(h), The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards (55-1) on “Meetings of the Board of Directors" and Secretarial Standards ($5-2) on 
“General Meetings” issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

(j} Listing agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited (BSE). 

During the period under review, the Company has generally complled with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standard, etc. mentioned above 

| further report that having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on examination of the 
relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof on the test-check basis, the Company has.complied with the 

following laws apply specifically ta the Company. 
Factories. Act, 1948; 

The Emplayees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952; 

The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972; 
Reserve bank of India Act, 1934; 

_Air Pollution Control Act; [y
p 
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6. Indian Contract Act, 1872; 

7 Income Tax Act, 1961 and Indirect Tax laws; 

8, Indian Stannp Act, 1999; 

5. Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881; 

10. The Customs Act, 1962 

11. The Sale of Goods Act, 1930 
12. Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Develapment Act, 2006 and many other Acts. 
13. Goods and Services Tax Act, 2014 

| Further report that 

A, The Board of Directors of the Compary is duly constituted with the proper balance of Executive Directors, Non- 
Executive Directors and Iridependent Directors. The Board also has.a woman director, There was no change in 

the composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review. 
8. Adequate notice is given to all directors to.-s¢hedule the Board Meetings except where the consent of directors 

is obtained for scheduling meeting at shorter notice, agenda and detailed notes on the agenda were sent at 

least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications 
on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting, 

€, Acsystem) exists for directors to seek and obtain further information and clarifications on the agenda items: 

before the meetings and for their meaningful participation at the meetings. 

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were carried out unanimously as recorded in the 

minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or committees of the Board, as the case may be. 

I further report as regards the compliance mechanism in place that there are reasonably adequate systems and 
processes in the Company commensurate with its size and operations ta monitor and ensure compliance with 

applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines 
(further report that during the audit period there were no specific eVents/actions having a significant bearing 
on the Company's affairs in pursuapce of the abgve-referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. 

PLACE: AHMEDABAD . JOLLY KRUTESH PATEL 

DATE: 14.08.2024 PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY 
FCS: 10937 COP No. 21010 

Ta, 

The Members, 

Citizen Infoline Limited 
(CIN:-L67120G/1994P1C023561) 

411, Sakar Il, Ellis Bridge, 

Ahmedabad —380 006. 

Secretarial Audit Report (Form MR-3) of even date for the financial year ended 317 March 2024 is to be read along 

with this annexure, 

1, The Company's management is responsible for the maintenance of secretarial records and compliance with the 
provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rulés, regulations and standards, My responsibility is to express 

an opinion on the secretarial records produced for my audit, My examination was limited to the verification of the 

procedure on a test basis. 

2, | have followed the audit practices and process as | considered appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. 

a. The verification was done on a test basis to ensure that correct fact is reflected in Secretarial records. | believe that 

the process and practice, | followed, provide a reasonable basis for my opinion, 

4. (have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the Company. 
5, | have obtained the Management's representation about the compliance of law, rules and regulations and 

happening of events, etc., wherever required, 

& The Secretaria! Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 
PLACE: AHMEDABAD pee 3 JOLLY KRUTESH PATEL 
DATE: 14,08,2024 PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY 

= FCS: 10937 COP No. 21010 



Annexure — C— Conservation of Energy, Technical Abserptions and Forex Details 

* Disclosure as per the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of the Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY (FORM A) 

Since the company is engaged in the service business, its operation does not involve substantial consumption 

of energy. However, the company has taken necessary care to conserve the scarce resources of the nation, 

Form for disclosure of Particulars concerning the consumption of energy 
Not Applicable 

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION (FORM B) 

The company has not imported any technology, but the company Is very conscious. of absorbing necessary 

technological advancement in its service. The company is continuously upgrading existing technology as well as 

innovating for cost reduction and quality improvements. 

C, FOREIGH EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OGUTGO 2023-24(%) 2022-23(%) 

Total Foreign Exchange Outgo NIL MIL. 

Total Foreign Exchange Earnings NIL NIL 

Total Foreign Exchange Outgo (Capital Goods) NIL NIL 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

a 
Place: Ahmedabad (Omprakash L Jain) (Ravindra O Jain) 

Date: 14.08.2024 Managing Director Director 
DIN: 00171365 DIN: 00412634 
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Management Discussion and Analysis 

« INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS 

The print and publishing industry has been profoundly altered by the digital media revolution. Newsprint is moving from 
print to the web even while the publishing industry at large is becoming digitized. The emergence of digital and online 

media has brought about a significant change in the core business model of the publishing industry. The change in 
technology and consumer behavior has given to new opportunities and challenges for traditional publishers. 

The repaid expansion of digital media has driven publishers to reduce costs and streamline their operations, Also, the 

pressure on publisher has increased as a growing number of consumers prefer access to online content. Publishers are 

now finding innovative ways to deliver content to users. Some of the emerging trends in the publishing industry include 

electronic books (eBooks), podcasts, blogs, mobile publishing, and self-publishing. Same publishers have also started 
focusing on new opportunities such as user-generated content and online communities, 

s FUTURE i 

The Company is facing a tough competition fromm markets, There is a drastit change in the print and digital advertisement 

platforms, The Consumer behavior is alse changing, which can.pose a significant challenge to the nature of the business 
of the company. 

* OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS 
Yellow pages media is aiming to get as many people as possible searching its online sites, such as Www. infaling com, as 
it continues to mave beyand print directories and become a digital company. But low prices fur ifiternet advertising may 

reduce revenues and condition advertiser expectations in the long term, reducing the overall vaiue of the market. 

Any inability to accommodate increased user traffic, due to-warious factors, Including systems or technology failure or 

obsolescence, on our website may cause unanticipated system disruptions, slower response time and degradation in 
quality of our service, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, reputation, financial condition and 
result of operations, 

* PERFORMANCE 
The Financial performance of the Company is discussed in Director's Report. The Audit Committee also reviews financial 
performance from time to time. : 

* CHALLENGES AND FUTURE OUTPUT 
Our business strategy emphasizes the fallawing: 

1. Increase our market shares in India’s expanding yellow pages & online advertising by follawing:a disciplined 

growth strategy foctising on quality and not‘on quantity and delivering high-quality customer service. 
4. Leverage our technology platform and open-scalable systems to deliver more products to more customers and 

To control operating costs. 

3. Develop innovative products and service that attract our targeted customers and address inefficienciesin the 

advertising sector. 
4. Focus on high earnings growth with low volatility, 

«® INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS 

The Company has built adequate systems of internal control towards achieving efficiency and effectiveness in 

operations, optimum utilization of resources, and effective monitoring thereof as well as compliance with all applicable 
laws, The internal contral mechanism comprises of well-defined organization structure, documented policy guidelines, 

predetermined authority levels and processes commensurate with the level of responsibility, 

. 

The Company's belief in trust, transparency and teamwork improved employee efficiency at all levels. The Company's 

commitment to harmonious Industrial relations resulted in enhancing the effectiveness of operations and enabled the 
achievement of benchmarks in the industry. The company's ongoimg objective |s to create an inspirational work climate 
where talented employees engaged In creating sustained value for the stakeholders. Training and orientation programs 

are being atranged periodically, to update the employees in the work techniques. The overall human resources are 

positive, and we would be able to achieve the desired objectives effectively, The Company has developed an 

environment of harmonious and cordial relations with its employees. 



» CAUTION STATEMENT 

The statement in this Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing the Company's objectives, estimates etc. 

may be “Forward-Looking Statement” within the applicable laws-& regulations. Actual results may vary from those 

expressed or implied; several factors that may affect Company's operations Include Dependency on telecommunication 

and Information technology system, Government policies and several other factors. The company takes no responsibility 

for any consequences of the decision made, based on such statement and holds no obligation to update these iin future, 

= DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIO 

Please see'the note 43 of Financial Statements for the analysis of the following ratios. 

Debtors Turnover 

Interest Coverage Ratio 
~ Current Ratio 

- Inventory Turmmover Ratio 

Debt Equity Ratio 

Operating Profit Margin 

Net Profit Margin 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

el sae 

Place: Ahmedabad (Omprakash LJain) (Ravindra Jain) 

Date: 14 August 2024 Managing Director Director 
DIN: 00171365 DIN; 0412684 



Corporate Governance 

Citizen infoiine Limited has established a tradition of the highest standards of corporate governance principals and best 
practices. The Company Is committed to Introducing corporate governance practices in tandem with domestics and 

international developments to position it to conform te the best governance practices. 

1. Our Governance philosophy 
The company's philosophy on corporate governance envisages the attainment of the highest levels. of transference, 

accountability and equity in all facets of its operation and all its Interactions with its stakeholders including shareholders, 
employees, the government, lender's and the society, The company belleves that all |ts operations and actions must 

achieve the underlying goal of enhancing overall shareholder value aver a sustained period, in. our commitment to 
Practice sound governance principles, we are gulded by the following core principles: 

= Transparency 

To maintain the highest standards of transparency in al| aspects of our interactions and déalings. 

« Disclosures 

To-ensute timely dissemination of-all price sensitive |nformation and matters of |nterest to.our stakeholders, 
« Accountability ; 

To demonstrate the highest levels of petsonal responsibility and continually affirm that employees are responsible 

for themselves forthe pursuit of excellence. 
* Compliances 

To comply with all the Jaws and regulations-as applicable to the company. 
«Ethical conduct 

Ta conduct the affairs of the company ethically. 

« Stakeholders’ interests 

To- promote the interests of all stakeholders including customers, shareholders; employees, lenders, vendors:and 
the community. 

2. Governance practices beyond regulatory requirements 

Our governance practices go beyond the statutory and regulatory requirements. We endeavor to follow the spirit af 

good governance than mere compliance with the Conditions specified by regulatory authorities. With this objective, we 
have formulated, inter alias, the following policy documents and introduced best practices of governance: 

2.1, Values and commitments 

We have set out and adopted policy documents on ‘values and commitments’ of the Company, We believe that any 

business conduct can be ethical only when it rests.on the nine core values of honesty, integrity, respect, fairness, 
purposefulness, trust, responsibility, citizenship and caring. 

2.2. Code of Ethies 

Gur policy document on 'code of ethies', in essence, directs that our employees should conduct the business with 
integrity by excluding consideration of personal advantage. 

2.3. Business policies 

Our ‘business policies’ contains the policy on fair market practices, inside information, financial records and accounting 
integrity, external communication, work ethics, personal conduct, policy on prevention of sexual harassment, health, 
safety & environment and quality. 

2.4. Separation of the Board's supervisory role from the executive management 

In line with the best global practices, we have adopted the policy of separating the Board's-supervisory role from the 
executive management and splitting the posts of chalrman and MD, 

2.5. Prohibition of insider trading paticy 
This document contains the pallcy on prohibiting trading in the equity shares af the Company, based-on inside or 

privileged information, 

2.6. Prevention of sexual harassment 
Our policy on prevention of sexual harassment aims at promoting a productive work environment and protects 

individual rights against sexual harassment. 

2.7.. Whistle Blower Policy 

Our whistleblower policy encourages disclosure In good faith of any wrongful conduct on @ matter of general concern 
and protects the whistleblower from any adverse personnel action. 

2.4. Risk Management 

The: Company Is exposed to risks from market fluctuations of foreign exchange, interest rates, commiodity prices, 

business risk, compliance risks and people risks. 

= Foreign Exchange Risk: The Company's policy isto actively manage its long-term foreign exchange risk within the 

framework laid down by the Company's FOREX Policy approved by the Board. 

* Interest Rate Risk: Given the interest rate fluctuations, the Company has-adopted a prudent and conservative risk- 
Mitigating strategy to minimize interest costs. 

— Saqe dete 



* Commodity Price Risk: The Company is exposed to the risk of price fluctuation on raw materials as well as finished 

goods in all of its products, The Company proactively manages these risks in inputs through forwarding booking, 

inventory Management, proactive management of vendor development and relationships. The Company's strong 

reputation for quality, product differentiation and service, the existence of a powerful brand image and a robust 
marketing network mitigates the impact of price risk on-finished goods. 

* Risk Element in Individual Businesses: Apart from the risks on account of Interest rate, foreign exchange and 

regulatory changes, various businesses of the Company are expesed to certain operating business tisks, which are 

managed by regular monitoring and corrective actions, 
+ Compliance Risk: The Company is exposed to risks attached to various statutes and regulations, including the 

Competition Act, 2002. The Company is mitigating these risks through regular reviews of legal compliances, through 
internal as well as external compliance audits, 

= People Risk: Retaining the existing talent pool and attracting new human resources are significant risks. The 

Company has initiated various measures such-as the rollout-of the strategic talent management system, training 

and integration-of learning activities. 

3. Boardroom practices. 
3.1. Board charter 

The board of directors has adopted a comprehensive board charter, The charter has set out matters relating to board 
composition, scope and functions of the board and its committees, etc. 

3.2. Tenure of independent directors 
Tenure of independent directors an the beard of the Company shall motexténd beyand stipulated years, subjectto their 
re-appointment on retirement by rotation as per statutory provisions. 

3.3. Director's interaction with shareholders 
Mr Omprakash Jain and Mr Ravindra ©. Jain interact with shareholders on their suggestions and queries which are 

forwarded tothe compliance officer, 

3.4. Meeting of independent directors with operating team 

The independent directors of the company Meet in executive sessions with the operating teams ineach of the respective 

areas, régularly as they deem necessary. These executive session discussions may include topics such as operating 

policies and procedures; risk management strategies; 

Measures to improve efficiencies; performance and compensation: strategic issues for board consideration; the flow of 

information to directors; management progression and succession and others as the independent directors may 
determine. During these executive sessions, the independent directors have access ‘to members. of management and. 

other advisors,-as the independent directors may determine and deem fit. 

3.5. Commitment of directors 
The board meeting dates for the entire fiscal year are scheduled at the beginning of the year, and an annual calendar of 
meetings of the board and its committees. are circulated to the directors. This enables the directors to plan their 

commitments and facilitate the attendance of all directors at the meetings of the board and its committees. Such 
planning of meetings enables the directors to plan their commitments, particularly in the context that the meetings of 

the board normally extend aver thé entire working day: 

4. Governance practices being followed to promote the interests of our stakeholders 
We have in the recent past introduced several trends setting governance practices to improve stakeholder satisfaction. 

5. Compliance with clause 49 of the listing agreement 

Citizen Infoline Limited is fully compliant with the mandatory requirements of clause 49 of the listing agreement 

formulated by Securities and Exchange Board of india {SEBI). 

We presentour reporton compliance of governance conditions specified in clause 49. 

5.1. Board of directors 

5.1.1, Board composition - Board strength and representation 
As-of March 31, 2024, the board consisted of Eight members. The composition of and the category of directors on the 
board-of the company were as under: 

Category Particularsof Director 

Promoter & Executive = Omprakash L Jain (Managing Director} 
Director > Ravindra O Jain 

~ Kasturi R\ Jain 

Promoter & Non 

Executive Director 

independent & Non - Vikas H_Jirawala 
Executive Director - Mitesh A Jain 

- Sandeep M, Jain 

Nominee Director ~ Nil 
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Directors Mr Omprakash Jain, Mr Ravindra G.Jain, Ms. Kasturi Jain are related to each other. No‘other director is related 
tocany other director, You may visit our website for knowing formalization program imparted to the independent 

directors. You may Wisit ourwebsite for knowing code for independent directors. 
5.1.2. Conduct of board proceedings 

The day to day business is conducted by the officers and the managers of the Company under the direction of the board. 

led by the Chairman. The board holds six ta seven meetings every year to review and discuss the performance of the 

company, its plans, strategies and other pertinent issues relating to the company. 
The board performs the follawing specific functions In addition to the oversight of the business and the management: 

= Review, monitor and approve major finencial and business strategies and corporate actions. 
= Assess critical risks facing the company their mitigation, 

* Provide counsel on the selection, evaluation, development and compensation of senior management, 

* Ensure that processes are in place for maintaining the integrity of 
= The company 

The financial statements 

Compliance with law 

Relationships with all the stakeholders 
A delegation of appropriate authority to the senior executives of the company or effective management 

of operations, 

5.1.4. Board meetings 

Board Meetings were held during the year. They were held on 01.04.2023, 08.05.2023, 18.05,2023, 12.08.2023, 

04.09:2023;'07.11,2023, 06.02.2024, 15.02.2024 & 31.03;2024 

5.1.4, Attendance of directors at the Board Meetings held during 2023-24 and the last Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) 

Directors Meetings Meeting AGM 

In year Attended 

G.P. Jain B] ] Yes 

A, O.Jaln 9 9 Yes 
V. AiJirawala 9 5 Yes 

KR Jain 4 ] Yes 

M A Jain g 5 Yes 

§ M Jain 9 5 Yes 

Reena Shah 5 :] Yes 

Notes: 

= None ofthe Directors has a business relationship with the Company. 

* None of the directors receive any loans and advance from the Company 

5.1.5. Other directorships 
None of the directors holds directorships in more than ten public limited companies. 

The details of directorships (including private limited, foreign company and companies under section 8 of the Companies 

Act, 2013), Chairmanships and the Committee memberships held by the directors as on March 31, 2024 
Name of Directors Number of other 

Membership./ Directorship 

0. F Jain 1 

RO. Jain 2 

VHA. Jirawala Nil 

KR Jain 1 

M_AJain 1 

SM Jain Nil 

Notes: 

1, The information provided above pertains to the fallowing committees by the provisions of clause 49 of the listing 

agreement: a. Audit committee b, Sharehalders/investors' grievances committee 
2. Membership-of committees inchides chairmanship if any. 

5.1.6. Mentbership of board committees 

No director holds membership of more than ten committees of boards nor is any director a‘chairman of more than five 
committees. of boards. 

5.1.7. Details of Directors 

The abbreviated resumes of all Directors are furnished hereunder: 
* Shree Omprakash Jain 

He has been chairman of Citizen Group of Companies for last 30-years, He Is the ploneer of the company towards new 
goals and achievernent, The company fas his valiable services since its incorporation. 



« Shree Ravindra O Jain 
He has been a director in the company for more than 14 years. He is providing valuable support to the management of 

the company. He is the young and dynamic face of the company, 

« Shree Vikas H Jirawala 
Heis a Chartered Accountant and will be providing a Veluable-support to the management of the company. 

» §mt. Kasturi R. Jain 

She is Graduate in Master of Commerce. She Is providing valuable support to (he management of the company, She is 

the young and dynamic face of the company. 

* Shree Mitesh A. Jain 
He is CFO & MBA and has been a director in the company for four years. He is providing valuable support to the 

management of the company. 

» Shree Sandeep M. Jain 

He-is MBA and has been adirector in the company for four years, He is providing valuable support te the management 
of the company, 

5.1.8. Core Skills/Expertise/ Competencies. Available with the Board 

The Board comprises of qualified members. who possess required skills, expertise and competencies that allow them 

to make effective contributions to the Board and its Committees. The following skills/expertise / competencies have 
been identified for the effective functioning of the Company and are currently available with the Board: 

* Leadership / Operational experience 
* Strategic Planning 

* Industry Experience, Research & Development.and Innovation 

«Financial, Regulatory / Legal & Risk Management 

* Corporate Governance 

Name of Director Area of Expertise 

Omprakash Jain leadership / Operational experience 

Strategic Planning 

Industry Experience, Research & Development and Innovation 

Ravindra Jain Leadership / Operational experience 
Strategic Planning 

Kasturi Jain Strategic Planning 
Vikas Jirawala Financial, Regulatory / Legal& Risk Management 

Corporate Governance 

Mitesh Jain Strategic Planning 

Financial, Regulatory / Legal & Risk Management 

Corporate Governance 

Sandip Jain Financial, Regulatory / Legal & Risk Management 
Corporate Governance 

5.1.9, Insurance coverage 

The company has not obtained director's liability insurance coverage In respect of any legal action that might be initiated 
against directors. 

5.2, Details of Committees 
5.2.1. Audit Committee: 

The Audit Committee has been constituted w.e.f, March 28, 2003. The Audit committee |s reconstituted on/13 August, 
2018. Audit Committee presently comprises of one executwe and two non-executive Directors, namely 

* Mr. Vikas HJirawala - Chairman 

«= Mr. Mitesh Adain = Member 
* Mr. Omprakash Jain : Member 

Allthe members of the Audit Committee have good knowledge of finance, accounts and company law. The chairman of 
the committee has financial management expertise. The committee held 4{four) meetings during the year. The audit 

committee also advises the management on the areas where internal audit can be improved: The minutes of the 

meetings of the audit committee are placed before the board, The terms of reference of the audit committee are by all 
the items listed in clause 49 (I) (D) and (E) of the listing agreement and section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, as 
follows! : 

1) Overseeing of the company's financial reporting process: and the disclasure of its financial information to ensure 
that the financial information is correct, sufficient and credible. 

#) Recommending the appointment, reappointment and replacement/removal of statutory auditors and fixation of 
the audit fee. 

3) Approve payment for any other services by statutory auditors, 

4) Reviewing with management the annual financial statements before submission to the board, focusing primarily 
oni; 
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o Matters required being included in the directors’ responsibility statement included in the report of the board 
of directors, 

a Any changes in accounting policies. and practices, 

Major atcounting entries based on the exercise of judgment by management. 

Qualifications in the draft statutory audit report. 
Significant adjustments arising out of the audit, 

Compliance with listing and other legal requirements concerning financial statements. 
Any related party transactions, 

5) Reviewing with the management the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for approval. 
6) Reviewing with the management, external and internal auditors, and the adequacy of internal control systems. 
7) Reviewing the adequacy of the internal-audit function, including the structure of the internal audit department, 

staffing and Sentority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of Internal 

audit, 

8) Discussion with internal auditors any significant findings and follow up thereon. 

9) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected 

fraud of irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of material nature and reporting the matter to the 
board, 

10) Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences about nature and scope of audit as well as past- 
audit discussion to.ascertain any area of concern. 

11) To: look inte the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the. depositors, shareholders (in case of non- 

payment of declared dividends) and cred|tors. 

12) To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism, in case the same is existing. 

13) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in terms of reference-of the audit committee. 

14) Review the following Information: 

* Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations: 
* Internal audit reports relating to internal contro) weaknesses; 

= Management létters/letters of internal contral weaknesses issued by statutory/internal auditors: 

= Statement of significantly related party transactions; and 

= The appointment, removal and terns of remuneration of the auditor shall be subject to review by the Audit 
Committee, 

The Audit Committee has the following powers: 
= Jo investigate any activity within its terms of reference. 
= To seek any information from any employee. 

=  Toobtain outside egal and professional acivice. 

= To secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers it necessary. 

Attendance at the meetings of the Audit Committee held during the year 2023-24 

Directors. Meetings Meetings 

in year Attended 

B
e
k
 

A
e
 

Vikas H, Jirawals 5 5 
Omprakash L. Jain 5 LF 

Mitesh Jain a5 5 

The Audit Committee hele meetings on 08.05;2023, 12.08.2023, 07,11.2023, 06,02\2024, 22.02.2024. 

Nomination / Remuneration Committee 

The nomination/remuneration committee of the board is constituted to formulate from time to time, 
a) Process for selection and appointment of new directors and succession plans: and 
b) Accompensation structure for the members of the board, 

The Committee is reconstituted on 2™ March 2019, as follows, 
© Mr Mitesh Jain - Chairman 

* Mr Vikas Jirawata - Member 
The remuneration policy is directed towards rewarding performance. It is aimed at attracting and retaining high caliber 
talent. 

The Committee met an 1 April 2023 and 31 March, 2024. 

The Company does have an incentive plan, which is linked ta performance and achievement of the Company's 

objectives. The Company has no stock option scheme. 

Total remuneration paid to Directors of the Company during the year ended March 31, 2024, is Rs.18.78 Lacs, 
Notes: 

6 The company has not entered into-any other pecuniary relationship or transactions with the non-executive 

directors, 

o The company hasso far not issued any stock options to its directors. 

* Equity shares held by directors: 
Particulars of Equity Shares held by the director as of 31 March 2024 is as follows 
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Name of Directors Equity Shares Held 

Omprakash L. Jain 2,54, 700 

Ravindra ©, Jain 6,64,000 
Kasturi R. Jain 2,40,600 

Mitesh A Jain Nil 

Sandeep M Jain fil 

Vikas H Jirawala Nil 

« Directors’ remuneration policy: 
The nomination/remuneration committee determines, the compensation of the directors including their commission 
and ESOPs. The key components of the company's remuneration policy are: 

6 Compensation will be a major driver of performance and contribution. 
© Compensation will be competitive and benchmarked with a selected group of companies fram the services sector. 

o Compensation will be:transparent, fair and simple to administer. 
o Compensation will be-fully legal and tax compliant. 

§.2.2. Shareholders/investors' grievances committee: 
The Shareholders Grievances re-committee has been constituted-w.e-f. July 7", 2014. It was reconstituted on 2™ March 

2020 as follows. The Shareholders Grievances Committee presently comprises of one executive and two non-executive 

Directors, namely 

iii) Date of Books Closure r 

A) Vikas Jirawala . Chairman 
8) Omprakash L. Jain - Member 

C} Sandeep tain . Member 
Particulars of investors’ complaints received are as follows 

Particulars Queries Queries 
Recelved Solved 

Transfer of Shares: Nil Nil 

Non-receipts of Nil Nil 

Annual Report 
Non-receipt of 

Dividend warrants Nil Nil 

Pending Share 
Transfers Nil Nil 

The Particulars of meetings held during the year are furnished hereunder. 

Directors Meetings Meetings 

In year Attended 

Sandeep Jain 4 4 

Omprakash Jain 4 4 

Vikas Jirawala 4 4 

The meetings are held on 08.05.2023, 12.08.2024, 07.11.2023, 06.02.2024. The meetings are regularly held, 

6, Generali Body Meetings: 

The company held its last three Annual General Meetings as under: 
= For 2020-24 at 414, Sakar ll, Ellis Bridge, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad - 380006 on 30 September 202 bat 12:00 noon, 

* for 2021-27 at 411, Sakar ll, Ellis Bridge, Ashram Read, Ahmedabad - 320006 on 30" June, 2022 at 17:00 noan, 

* For 2022-23 at414, Sakar ll, Ellis Bridge, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad - 380006 on 30” September 2023 at 12:00 noon, 
7. Means of communication 

Information like quarterly financial results and media releases on significant developments-in the company as also 

presentations that have been made from time to time to the media and has been submitted to the stock exchanges on 

which the company's equity shares are listed, to ‘enable them to put thenmon their web sites. The Quarterly financial 

results are generally published in "Western Times” (Gujarati & English). 
8, General Share Holder Information: 
i) Annual General Meeting 

Date, Time and Venue 

ii} Financial Year 
« Results for the first quarter 

ending June 30, 2024 

«© Results for the second quarter 

ending September 30, 2024 

« Results for the Third quarter 
ending December 31, 2024 

* Results for the financial year 
ending March 31, 2025 

Monday 30" September, 2024 
Virtual 

2023-24 

On or Before 15" August 2024 

On or Before 15" November 2024 

On or Before 15" February 2025 

On or Before 30th May 2025 

pale tasted t September 2024 to 30" September, 2024 



iv) Dividend payment Date ; NLA. 

v) Listing on Stock Exchanges 4 Bombay Stack Exchange Ltd. 
Demat (SIN in NSDL & COSL : INE473L01018 

9. Distribution of Shareholding as on 3ist March 2024: 

Distribution of No, of Percentage of Total Percentage of 
Shares (Slab wise) Shareholders total shares Shares 

— shareholders 
Up to 500 5969 90.6454 743999 13,7847 
501-1000 997 4.4343 245191 4.5478 

1001-2000 156 2.3690 247017 4.5767 

2001-3000 59 0.8960 147443 2.7318 

3001-4000 22 0.3341 79343 14700 

4001-5000 38 0.4252 132090 2.4473 

5001 -10000 40 0.4556 227844 4.2714 

10001 & Above 35 0.4404 3574373 66.2253 

Total 6585 100,00 5397300 100.00 

10. Shareholding Pattern as on 31" March 2024: 
Category Total Shares % to equity 
Promoter and Prometer Group 1876700 a477 
Bodies corporate 107682 1,99 

NAl/Foreign national/foreign corporate bodies 21740 0.59 
Mutual Fund/UT) Financial Institution/Bank 21500 0.40 

Indian Public 3289368 60,95 
Hindu Undivided Families 70310 1.30 

Clearing Members Nil Nil 
Total 5397300 100.00 

11. Dematerialization of Shares: 

The Equity Shares of the Company are traded compulsorily in the dematerialized form. The Company has agreed with 

both National Depository tid, (NSDL) and Central Depositary Securities Ltd. (CDSL), whereby the shareholders have the 
Option to dematerialize their shares with either of the depositories, 

Status of Dematerialization as of 31" March 2024 

Particulars No of Shares Sof Total capital No. Of Shareholder 

Tota! Dematerlalized 3843500 7122 1136 

Physical 1553800. an7g 5449 

Grand Total 53974300 100.00 6725 

12. Share Transfer System: 

Share Transfer has normally been processed and returned within 21 days from the date-of lodament; provided the 

necessary documents were in-order. 

The company has appointed a common agency on a single point for physical and demat registry work: The address of 

the Register and Share Transfer Agent is as under: 

LUNK INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 

05" Floor, 506 ta 508, Amarnath Business Centre-1(ABC-1), 
Beside Gala Business Centre, 

Nr. St, Xavier's College Corner, 

Off CG Road, Ellisbridge, Ahmedabad-380006 

Orat the Register and Share Transfer Agent Address as mention above. 

Investor Correspondente may be addressed ta: 
Mis. Reena Shah, Company Secretary 
411) Sakar —|1,Ellishridge, Ashram Road, 

Ahmedabad ~ 380006 

Phone no. — 91-79-28585555, Email: acc@intoline.com 
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13. 
14. 

The other provisions of Clause 9 of Part C of Schedule V of LORD shall be treated as Nil or Not Applicable. 
The Company has not any dividend in last 7 years. 

15. Annual Secretarial Compliance Report 

16. 

According to the SEB! circular na, CIR/CFO/ CMD1/27/2019 dated February 8, 2019, the Company has obtained an 
Annual'Secretarial Cornpliance Report from Ms Jolly Patel, Practising Company Secretary, confirming compliance 

of SEBI regulations / Circulars / Guidelines issued thereunder and applicable to the Company. There are no 
observations or adverse remarks in the said report. 

Review of Directors Responsibility Statement: 
The board in its report has confirmed that annual accounts for the year ended on 31st March 2024 have been 

prepared as per applicable Accounting Standards and policies and that sufficient care has been taken for 
maintaining adequate accounting records, 

Other Disclosures. 

17.1. There are no materially significant related party transactions that may have a conflict with the potential 
interest-of the company. 

17.2. There are no penalties, strictures imposed on the company by the stock exchange, SEBI or any other 

statutory authority for the matter relating to the capital markets in the last three years, 

17.3. The company bas established a vigil mechanism, whistleblower policy. No person has been denied access to 
the audit committee, 

17.4, The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements. has also met with the following non- 
mandatory provisions. 

Appointment of Independent Directors 

Constitution of Audit Committee 

Constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

Constitution of Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

Vigil Mechanism 
17.5. The Company does not have any material subsidiary, You can wisit our website for ‘Polity for detenminatioan 

of Material Subsidiary’. 
17.6. The policy on dealing with related party transactionsts available on our website. Visit our website, 

17,7. There is no commodity price risk or hedging activity undertaken by the company. 
17.8. The company has not raised any money through preferential allotments or qualified institutions placements. 
17.9. Certificate from Ms Jolly, Patel, Practising Company Secretary, confirming that none of the Directors on the 

Board.of the Company have been debarred) or disqualified from being appointed or continulng as ‘directors of 

companies by the SEBI, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority, axstipulated 

under Regulation 34(3) of the Listing Regulations, is attached to this Report. 
17,10, The Company has not received any complaints about Sexual Harassment during the financial year. Youcan 

acoess our Polley on Prevention of Sexual harassment, a5 formed under Sexual Harassment of Womer-at 

Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressed) Act, 2013 by visiting our website. 
17,11. The Board has accepted all the recommendations of the committee during the year. 

17.12. Total fees for all services paid by the Company and its subsidiaries, on a-consolidated basis, to statutory 
auditors ef the Company and other firms in the network entity of which the statutory auditors are a part, 

during the year ended March 31, 2023, is Rs.20,000/- 

17.13. The Company dees not have any share outstanding in Unelaimed Suspense Account or Demat Suspense 

Account at the beginning, during or closing of year. Mo'shares were transferred from such account during the 

year. 
18. Code of Conduct: 

The company adopted-the code of conduct and ethics for directors & senior management. The code has been 

circulated to all the members of the board and senior management. The board members & senior management 
have affirmed their compliance with the code and a declaration signed by the Chairman of the company 
appointed is given below: 

| hereby confirm-that- the Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and Senior Management 
Personnel, the affirmation that they have complied with the ‘Code of Conduct! and “Our Code’ in respect of the 

financial year 2023-24," 
Place: Ahmedabad For, Citizen Infol 

Date: 14 August 2024 Bowes 

fompatekient 

Managing Director 
DIN: 00171365 



Certification by Management 

The Board of Directors, 

Citizen Infoline Limited 

(a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended on 3ist March 2024 and 

State that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 
(i) these statements da not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain 

statements that might be misleading: 

(ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and comply with existing 
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year 

which is fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company's code of conduct, 

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and that we have evaluated the 
effectiveness of the internal control systems of the company, and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit 

Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, iPany, of which we are aware and the steps 

they have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

We further certify that we have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 
{a} Significant changes in internal control system during the year; 

(b) Significant changes in accounting policies during the year. and that the same have been disclosed in the notes 
to the financial statements; and 

(c) Instances of sipnificant fraud af which they have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 
Management or an employee having a significant role in the company's internal control system over financial 

feporting, 

Place: Ahmedabad For, Citizen Infoline Limited 
Date: 14 Augsut 2024 vo FE ‘ 

a ee — ‘ 

(Omprakeshsin)) «(Ravindra O Jain) 
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer 
DIN: 00171256 DIN ; 00412684 
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Auditor's Certification on Corporate Governance 

Ta, 

The Members of 

Citizen Infoline Limited 
We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate. Governance by Citizen Infoline Limited (‘the Company’) 

for the year ended on 31st March 2024, as stipulated in Schedule V Para-E of the Securities Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

The Compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. Qur examination was 

limited to review of the procedures and implementations thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring the conditions 
of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit aor an expression of opinion on the financial statement of the Company, 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, we certify that the 

Company has complied with the conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in Para C of Schedule V of Securities 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

We state that no grievances are pending fora period exceeding one month against the Company as per the records 

maintained by the Shareholders / Investors’ Grievances Committee / Management of the Company. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an-assurance as to the future liability of the Company nor the 

efficiencyor effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

Date: 14 August 2024 

Place; Ahmedabad Partner 

Membership No: 140047 

Firm Reg. no. 100865 W 

UDIN: 24140047 BKEJBF6110 



No Disqualification Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice 

To 

The Members, 
Citizens Infoline Limited 

| have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received frat the Directors of 
Citizen Infoline Limited having CIN L671206]1994PLC023561 and having registered office at'411, Sakar Il, Ellis 
bridge, Ahmedabad - 380.056 (from now on referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company 
for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Clause 
1O(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements} Regulations, 
2015. 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors 
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.meagov.in) as considered necessary and explanations 
furnished to me by the Company & its officers, | hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the 

Company as stated below for the financial year endingon 31 March 2024, have been debarred or disqualified fram 
being appointed or continuing as. Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority. 

| Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment 
Mr. Omprakash [ain —? 00171365 14 November 1994 
Mr. Ravindra Jain 00412684 1 May 2006 
Mr. Mitesh jain 03495847 7 July 2014 
Mr. Vikas Jirawala 02562015 1 June 2011 

Mrs, Kasturi Jain 06851177 26 March 2014 
Mr. Sandip Jain 06932060 7 july 2014 

Ensuring the eligibility of the appointment/cantinuity of every Director on the Board ts the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these, based on my verification, This 
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness 

with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Com 

PLACE: AHMEDABAD 
DATE: 14,068,202 4 

JOLLY KRUTESH PATEL 
PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARY 

FCS: 10937 COP No. 21010 

UDIN: FOLO9S 7FOO097 7925 
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( \ KRUTESH PATEL & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS. 

| 8-310, GOPAL PALACE, 
ABOVE HOTEL MAAN RESIDENCY, 

OPP OCEAN PARK, 

JHANSL KI RANI, AHMEDABAD-330015 

_ INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
The Members of 

CITIZEN INFOLINE UIMITED 

s OPINION 

We have audited accompanying Ind AS Standalone financial statements of M/s. Citizen Infoline Limited ("the 

Company”) Which comprises-the Balance Sheet a5 at March 31,2024, the Staternent of Profit and Loss, statement of 
changes in the Equity and statement of cash flows forthe year then ended, and notes te the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion andto the best of our information and according to the explanations given tous, the aforesaid standalone 

financial statements give the information required by the Actin the mannerso required and give-a true and fair view in 

conformity with the accounting principles generally actepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 
31, 2024, and profit & lass, statement of change in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

» BASIS OF OPINION 

We conducted ouraudit-by the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) ofthe Companies Act; 2014. 

Our responsibilities under these Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the Company In accordance with the Code of Ethics 

jssued-by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to-our 

audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe 

that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

KEY AUDIT MATTER 

Key audit matters are those matters-that, in our-professional judgment, were-of most-significance in our audit of the 

Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31,2024, These matters were.addressed in the 

context of our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and In forming:cur opinion thereon, and we do 
not provide a separate opinion on these matters, For each key matter, our description of how our audit addressed the 

matter is provided in that context. 

We have determined that-there are no key audit matters ta be communicated in-our report, 

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the Standaione Financial 

Statements section of our report, including in relation tothese matters, Accordingly, our audit included the performance 

o! procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial 
Statements: Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedure designed to respond ta our risk of material 

mistaken of the Standalone financial statements. The result‘of our audit procedure provides the basis-for our audit 

Opinion on the standalone financial statement. 

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON 

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 

information included in the Annual Repert, but does not-include the Standalone Financial Statements.and our auditers’ 
report thereon. Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.does not cower the other information and we do 

not-express any form of assurance conclusion thereon, In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial 

Statements, curresponsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information 

is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to 

be materially misstated. Hf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information, we arerequired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard, 



RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT FOR THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 

("the Act") with respect'to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financtal position, financial performance, (Changes in equity)[iv] and. cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the 

Act-This responsibility also Includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisians of 
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments 

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal 

financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management /s responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a 

gaing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going cdncern and using the golng concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
allernative but to do so. 

Thase Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process 

AUDITORS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Our objectives-are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a4 whole are 
free from matertal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report thal includes our 

opinion, Reasonable assurance is 2 high level of assurance, but is not apuarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 

with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud/or error and are 
considered material if, individually of in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements, 

AS part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit: We also: 

* Identity and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud 

oferror, design and perform audit pracedures résponsive-to these risks, and obtain audit evidence that Is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of nat detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may inwolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

mistepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate In the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 

on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls: 

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 

disclosures made by management. 

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to‘events.or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company's ability to-continue as.agoing concem. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 

disclosures ane Inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of ourauditors' repert, However, future events of conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying. transactions and events ina 

manner that achieves falr presentation, We Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned stope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant deficiencies 

in internal control that we identify during our audit. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 

that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and ta communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters thal may reasonably be thought to bear on cur independence, and where applicable le, 

related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 

31, 2024 and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in-our auditors’ report unless law or 

regulation preclides public disclostire about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, wa determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 



REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS. 

As tequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India 

in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the ‘Annexure A’ a'statement on the 

matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

We have sought and obtained afl the Information and explanations which tothe best of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary for our audit. 

i. 

2. 

1) 

2) 

3} 

4j 

5) 
6) 

7) 

a) 

9) 

PLACE: AHMEDABAD 

DATE: 16 MAY 20274 

In our. opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far.as {t appears 
from-our examination of those books 

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Change in Equity and the Cash Flow 
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account, 

{hour opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 

under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

On the basis-of the written representations received from the directors a4 on 31st March, 2024 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being apocinted as 

a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 
We here by attach an audit opinion with respect to the adequacy of the tnternal financial controls over financial 

feporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls vide notification dated June 13, 2017 
in. Annexure B to this report, 

Companies (Audit. and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and-to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us: 

Concerning the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report by Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules; 2014, in.our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to Ws: 

The Campany did mot have any long-term contracts Including derivative contracts for which there Were any 

niaterial foreseeable losses. 

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company, 
(i\The management has represented that to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the 

notes to accounts, ne funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either fram borrowed funds or share 
premium or any other sources or kinds of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), 

including foreign entities (“intermediaries”), with the understanding , whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the intermediately shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or jnvest in other persons or 

entities identified in any manner whatsoever by of an behalf of the Campany ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) ar 
provide any guarantee, security or like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(ii) |The management has represented that to the best of Its knowledge and belief, other than a5 disclosed in 

the notes te-accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including 

foreign entities ("Funding Parties’), with understanding whether recorded in writing of otherwise, that the 

company shall whether directly and indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of ultimate beneficiaries; and 

(i) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing 

has come to cur notice that has caused us ta believe that the representations under sub clause (i) and (ii) 

contain any material misstatements. 

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention of provisions of Section 

123 of the Companies Act, 2013 

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under section 197/16) of the Act, in our 

opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the limits preseribed for the payments 

of remuneration Is not applicable to the private company. 

With respect to reporting require under rule L1(G) ,we are unable to comment whether the accounting 

software use by a Company has a feature the record the audit trail and the same Has been operated throw out 
the year, Further, we are not able to comment whiter the same audit trail feature has been sampled with or 
not or whiter company has preserved the audit trail has prescribed. 

ARM REG, No. 100865W 
UDIN : 24140047 BKEIYN9248 



Annexure - A to Independent Auditors’ Report under CARO, 2016 

1, (a) The Company does-not have any Plant, Property and Equipment during the year under consideration, 

{b) The Company has 2 regular programme for-physical verification In a phased periodic manner, whith, in aur 

opinion, Is reasonable having regards to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets, No material 
discrepancies were noticed on-such verification: 

(c} According ta information and explanations given by the management, the Utle deeds/lease deeds of immovable 
properties included in Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the Company. 

{a} The Company has not revalued Property, Plant and Equipment’s or intangible assets during the year, 

() According to information and explanations given by the management, No proceeding has been initiated or 

pending against the company for holding any property, under the Benam| Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 or 
Tulas made thereunder, 

2. (aj The management has conducted. physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the-year, and 
nomateral discrepancies were noticed on such physical werification. 

(b) During any time: of the year, the Company do not have sanctioned working capital limit in excess of Rupees Five 

Crore in in aggregate, fram banks or financial instittitions on the basis.of Security of current assets, 

3. The Company has not made any investments or provided guarantee or security or granted loans to Companies, 

Partnership Firms; LLP or any other party of promoters or related parties as defined under Section 2(76) of 

Companies Act.2013, 

4. Inouropiqion and according to the information-anc explanations provided to us, provisions of section 185 and 186 
of the Companies Act 2013-and in respect of loans to directors including entities in which they aré Interested and in 

respect of loans and advances given, Investments made and, guarantees, and securities given have been complied 
with by the: Company. 

5, The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaningof Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2024 (as amended), Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order do not 
apply to the Company. 

6. According to the representation received, the Company is not required to maintain the books of accounts pursuant 
to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. Hence, the same has not bean reviewed by us, 

fila) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including 
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Inceme-Tax, Sales-Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Service Tax, Duty of 
Custom, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Gess and Other Statutory Dues applicable to it. 

{5) Atcording to the infarmation and explanations provided to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, locome-Tax, Service Tax, Sales-Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Duty of 

Custom, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and Other Statutory Dues were outstanding, at the year end, fora 
period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

& Ne transactions not recotded in the books of account haye-been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year 

in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, 

9S. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided by the management, the Company has 

not defaulted in reaaynent ofloans or borrowingte 8 financial institution, bank or government dr dues to debenture 
holders. 



10. Imowr opinion and according to the information and explanations provided by the management, the Campany has 

utilised the moales raised by way of debt instruments and term loans for (he purposes for which they were raised. 

11, {a} Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the Financial 

Statements and according to the information and explanations provided by the management, we report that no 

fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company by the officers and employees of the Company has been noticed 

or reported during the year 

(b) The Auditor has not filed any report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act in For ADT4 

as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit-and Auditors) Rules, 2044 with the Central Government. 

(c) The Auditor has not received any whistle blower complaint during the year. 

12, In-our opinion, the Company Is nota Nidhi Company) Therefore, the provisions of clause 3[xii} of the Order do not 

apoly te the Company and hence-noet commented upon 

13. According to the information and explanations provided Sy the managentent, transactions with the related parties 

comply with section 177 and 148-of Companies Act, 2013 where apolicable and the details have been disclosed in 
the Financial Statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

14. (a) The Company hasan internal.audit system commensurate with the size and mature of business of the Company, 

(b) The reports of internal auditors were Considered by the statutory auditor-of the company. 

15. Accerding to the information and explanations provided by the management, the Company has not entered into 

any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in-section 192 of Companies 

Act, 2013. 

16, Accerding to the information.and explanations provided to us, the provisions of section 454A of the Reserve Bank 
of india Act, 1924 do not apply to the Company. 

17. The Company has not Incurred cash losses during the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial 

year. 
18, There is no resignation of the Statutory Auditor during the year, 

19. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of firiancial assets and payment of 

financial liabilities; other information accompanying the financial statements, the auditor's knowledge of the Board 

of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the 

audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet-as and when they 

fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date 

20. Provisions of Section 135(5) of Companies Act, 2013 are- not applicable to the company, 

21. The Consolidated financial statements are not applicable ta the company. 

FOR, KRUTESH PATEL & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED (OUNTANTS 

PLACE: AHMEDABAD 
DATE: 16™ MAY 2024 PATEL 

PARTNER 

M. No: 140047 

FIRM REG, No. LOOBGSW 
~ UDIM ; 24140047BKEIYN9248 
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Annexure — B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Report on the internal Financial Controls 
Under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting.of Citizen Infoline Limited ("the Company”) as 

of March 31, 2024, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company far the year ended on that 
date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controis 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining intemal financial cantrois based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 

Internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controts Over Financial Reporting Ssued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india’! These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively forensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 

reliable financial Information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013, 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial contrals over financial reporting based 
on ouraudit. We conducted our audit inaccordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAland deemed ta be prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal financial controls, 
both.appiicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls. and, both issuad by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India, Those Standards andthe Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls-over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects: 

Ouraudit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the Interna! financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 

Our auidit'of imternal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal contro! based on the assessed ‘risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud of error 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my four audit 
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial.Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is'@ process designed to provide reasonable aésurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes by 
generally accepted accounting principles. A campany's Internal financial control aver financial reporting intludes those 
policies and procedures that 

(1) Pertain to. the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refiect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 
statements hy generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only by authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

(a)Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

rent Limitations of internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

ayce of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
Of improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to-error or fraud may occur and 

; detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls aver financial reporting to future 
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periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such Internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as of March 31, 2024, 

based on the internal contral over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

FOR, KRUTESH PATEL & ASSOCIATES 

PLACE: AHMEDABAD 
DATE: 16™ MAY 2024 

PARTNER 

M. No: 140047 

FIRM REG. No. 100865W 

UDIN : 24140047BKEIYN9248 



CITIZEN INFOLINE LIMITED 
411, Sakar - fl, Ellisbridge Corner, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad-390 006. 

BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31 MARCH 2024 

Particulars Note No.| Fear Previous Year 
See 

LASSETS " = Tin Lakns — tin Lakhs 

(4) Non-Current Assets ———— 
(a) Property, Plant-& Equipment — = - 

(b) Capital Work-in-Propress K = 
(c) Other Intangible Assets re aie + 
(d) Biological Assets other'than Bearer Plants ~ —s ” 

(e) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) Ps —— ‘ 

(f} Financial Assets toe a 
(i) Loans 1 40,245,045 45 41,335,045 
(ii) Other Financial Assets 2 | > seo0200) 4,400,000 

(2) Other non-current-assets es 
Total Non-Current Assets 44,645,045 45,735,045 

(2) Current Assets 
(a) Inventories - 

(b) Financial Assets 

(f) Investments F t= 

(i) Trade Receivables 4 : 
(iii) Gash & Cash Equivalents 4 158,957 
(iv) Bank Balance other than (iii) above = 
(¥) Loans ) 645,854 

(vi) Other Financial Assets - 

(ec) Other current assets 432,433 

(d) Assets classified as held forsale a - 

Total Current Assets ae 1,237,244 

Total Assets 46,103,758] 46,972,289 
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 19 
Notes attached there to form an integral part of the financial statements 
As per Our report of even date attached 

For, Krutesh Patel 

Chartered 

Firm Reg, No. 100865W 

Place : Abmedabad 

Date : 16th May 2024 

For, Citizen Infoline Limited 

Mo: 
Omprakash ha 

Place : Ahmedabad 

Date: 16th May 2024 
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Managing Direcor 

DIN; 00171365 

Ravindra Jain 

Director 

DIN: 00412684 



CITIZEN INFOLINE LIMITED 
411, Sakar - I, Ellishridge Corner, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad-340 006. 

BALANCE SHEET AS ON 315T MARCH 2024 

Particulars Note No.) Current Year Previous Year 

Tin teens Tin Lakhs 

Ll. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 

(a) Equity Share Capital 6 53,973,000 

(b) Other Equity 7 =H,040,412 
Total Equity 45,932,588 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 0 

(Hi) Other Financial Liabilities 
(b) Provisians a 0 
(c) Other Long Terms Liabilities it) 
(d) Deferred Government Grant 0 
Total Non-Current Liabilities | 

(a) Financial Liabilities 
(i) Borrowings 0 0 

(i) Trade Payables 

A, Total Outstanding dues of MSME Payables (a) 0 

B. Total Outstanding dues of other than MSMF. Payables 9(b) i 0 

(iH) Other Financial Liabilities LO if) 
(b) Provisions re 68,723) 1,028,298 
(¢} Current Tax Liabilities 12 23,350) 11,403 
(d) Other Current Liabilities a a 
Total Current Liabilities 92 1,039,701 

Total Current Liabilities 1,039,701 

Total Equity & Liabilities 46,103,758) 46,972,289 

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 19 - o- oi 

Notes attached there to form an integral part of the financial statements 

As per Our report of even date attached 

Membership No. : 140047 
Firm Reg. No.: LO086SW 

Place : Ahmedabad 

Date; 16th May 2024 
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For, Citizen Infoline Limited 
% 

Omprakash Jain Ravindra Jain 

Managing Direcor Director 

DIN: 00171365 DIN: 00412684 

Place : Ahmedabad 

Date : 16th May 2024 



CITIZEN INFOLINE LIMITED 
411, Sakar - I], Ellisbridge Corner, Ashram Road, Ahmedabad-380 006, 

PROFIT & LOSS STATEMENT AS AT 31 MARCH 2024 

Sr. Note 
No Particulars Ne. Previous Year 

* 

incomes; Cin Lakhs 
I Revenue [rom operations 13 25,749,512 

Less; Indirect Taxes a | 

Net Revenue from operations f - : h 25,749,512 

He |Other Income i? 3,303,318 
tl Total Revenue (1 +11) : : 27,052,830 

W | Expenses: : 
Purchase 22,635,687 
Change in Inventory 

Employee Benefit Expense 15 3,264,660 

Financial Costs 16 169 4,025 
Depreciation and Amottivation Expense i — 1 tb 
Other Fupenses 1a —_ ——e 105 8,688 

Total Expenses (IV) ==> . 26,961,060 

Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items and he — ae) 

Vo |tax (iif 79,097] 91,770 

VI [Exceptional Items . : 0) 

VII |Profic before extraordinary items and tax (V » VI) 

VI | Extraordinary Items 

IX [Profit before tax (VIl= VIL) 

x a 

(1) Current tax 

(2) Deferred tax: 

xI Profir( Loss) from the perid from continuing operations (09 

XU | Profits (Loss) from discontinuing operations 

NIL | Tax expense of discounting operations 

Profit/(Loss) from Diseontinuing operations [XII - XEN] 

AV |Profity(Loss) for the period (M}4-XIV) 

AVI [Earning per equity share: 

(1) Basic 

(2) Diluted 

The Accompanying notes are integral part af Financial Statements. 

As per Our report of even date attached 

For, Krutesh & Associates For, Citizen Infoline Limited 

eet / Feake 
ath — ’ 

Gnpeaiach ee Ravindra Jain 
Managing Director Director 

DIN: OOL71S65 || DIN: 00412604 
Membership No, : 140047 

Firm Rep, Nos 100865 We 

Place : Ahmedabad 

Date: 16th May 2024 
Place : Ahmedabad 

Date: 16th May 2024 
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CITIZEN INFOLINE LIMITED 
Cash flow Statement as on 3st March 2024 

Particulars 

Cash flow From Operating Activities 

Net Profit/(Loss) Before Tax and Adjustments 

Addl: 

Depreciation Provisiin 

Financial Expenses 

Profit/Loss qn Sale of Assets 

Profit on Sale of Investment 

Adjustment for Employee Benefit 

Operating Profit Before Working Capital changes 

(lncrease) Decrease In Trade Receivables 

Increase (Decrease) in ‘Trade Payables 

Increase (Decrease) in Inventories 

Increase /(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabiites (Current) 

Increase (Decrease) in Carrent Tax Liabilities 

Increases (Decrease) in Provision (Current) 

Cash Flow from Operations Hefore Tax 

Less: 

Tax Paid : 

Cash Flow from Operations {A} i : 

Cash Flow From Investing Activities hes - 

(lnerease) Decrease In Over Financial Assets (Non-Current) i 

Dividend income f 

Purchase of Property, Plant & Etnilpments | oO 

Sale af Property, Plant & Equipments & Shores: . i A : hl 

Cash flaw From investment Activities (B) L i} ha — 

Cash Flow From Financing Activities . i 
Increase/ (Decrease) In Borrowings (NonCurrent) —_ ee | ra rit | a 

(Increase) /Decrensé Ini Loans (Non-Current Assets) — B16HO1) | “372 
Increase (Decrease) ln Provisions (Non-(urrent) l = 

Increase (Decrease) in Borrowings (Current) 

increase / (Decrease) In Paichup capital 

Financial Expenses 

Cash flow From Financing Activities(C) 

Total Cash Flow of year 

Add: Opening Balance al Cash & Cash Equivelont 

Closing Balance of Cash & Equivelent 

Notes referred to above and notes attachid there ta form an integral part of Financial Statements 
This is the Cash Flow Sta) nt referred fo in oor Report of even date. 
For, Krutesh Patel & 

. 
For, Citizen In & Limited 

Chartered Acco apie ——- 
Omprakasirfain =—"—" Ravindra fain 

Kra Managing Direcor Director 

DON ; 00171365 DIN: (42 L684 

Membership No, : 140047 

Firm Reg, No. 1O00865W 
Place : Ahmedabad 

Bate: 16th May 2024 
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CITIZEN INFOLINE LIMITED 
Notes Forming Integral Part of the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

NOTE: 1 Loans (Non-Current Financial Assets) Tin Lakhs 
Sr.No Particulars Previous Year 

r Security Deposit 

Earnest Money Deposit 

Other Deppusit 0 

c) Doubehad 

Lows Suvaces bo related parties 5,210,045 

= Other Loans & Advances 36,725,000 

[Total in ® 41,335,045 

NOTE ; 2 Other Financial Assets (Non-Current} zt 
Sr.No Particulars Previous Year 

+ ‘Vradte investments|Unguoted)[Long-term) 0 

In Others 

450000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up in Opera Exports 4-400, 000 

(Pvt, dite ig here 

Total in® oy amen 4,400,000 
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CITIZEN INFOLINE LIMITED 
Notes Farming Integral Part of the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

NOTE: 3 Trade Receivables tin Lakhs tin Lakhs 

Sr.No Particulars (Current Year Previous Year 
Sundry Bebtors far bendeos ee. 0 
Other Debbors O 0 
Total in & o 0 

NOTE : 4 Cash & Cash Equivalent in Lakhs Tin Lakhs 
Sr. No Particulars “Current Year Previous Year 

= {Cash-in-Hamd t : 3 t 
Cash Balance - 23.235 47555 

Sub Total (Ay 23,235. 47,555 
: a =~ 

With Schedule Bank. : 111,402 

Sub Total (B}) _ 4 111,402 

2 (c) a — ; 

Total [A+ B+] 107,227 | tShH,957 

NOTE: 5 Loans (Current Financial Assets) Ein Lakhs Elm Lakhs 
‘Sr. No Particulars Current Year — Previous Vear 

Mdvence Recoverable in cosh arin kind or for valie te be considered 

|good : 

GST Receivable 409,645 $44,208 
Advance Income Tax/ Refund Due — 615,008 301,646 

Other Advances | a 
Total int 1,027.0 645,854 
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CITIZEN INFOLINE LIMITED 

Notes Forming Integral Part af the Financial Statements ax an 31 March 2024 

NOTE: 6fa) Equity Share Capital Tin Lakhs 

Sr Ma Particulars ‘| Previous Year 

AUTHORED CAPITAL, 
1,45,00,000 Equity Share of Re: 10/'=eack, 

To che Subscribers of the Memorandum 
92,24, 500 Equity Shares of Rs,10/- eaeh fully paid up 

21,7200 Equity shares has been issudd to transferorcompany 

against 2.1 as per the order of High court of Gujarat 

145,000,000 

53,974,000 

Total int 

(h} Reconcillation of the number of Shares Outstanding, 

53,97 

ere ear | rovions Yew — i — 
Particulars 

Equity Shares Outstanding at the Beginning of Year (Nos) Ss 5497300 

Equity Shares Outstanding. at the Beginning of Year (fs) ———— 0 

Add: | Shares Issued in the Year - ee 0 

Equity Shares Outstanding al the End of Year (Nos) —— 5,397,300 

Equity Shares Outstanding at the Ena of Year (fts,) ——~ 54,973,000 

2) Shareholder’s Holding Of Promoters 

Name of Share Holder ——_ ‘¢ 

Mi (impraicush fain 254,700 472 

My, Harsh ©. Jain 700 13-20%) 

Mrs. Kasturi fain aac 4.46% 

Me, Ravindra, jain 664000 12.30% 

1,876,700 34.77 
As.on March 2023 

Name of Share Holder Nar % 

- Mr, Ciiprataeth fain 254,700 ATE 

- Me, Harsh ©, fain 717,400 13.20% 

Mrs. Kasturi [ain 240,600 446% 

Mr, Ravindra 0, jain 664,000 12.30%) 

1,876,700 77% 

The Company has only ane cass of dquity shares with voting rights having a pur vida of Re, 10\per share: The 

Company declared and pays dividends in tadiin Rupees, ‘The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is 

subject to theappreval of the shareholders at the ensuing Anfual General Meeting, 

2 Turing the year ended March 21, 2024, the amount af dividend per equity shave distributed te equity 
shareholders te "Nil (Previous year ended March 41, 2023, Nil). 
in the-evert of liquidation of the Company, the shareholders of equity states will he entitled to fecein 

remaining astets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will ein 

proportion tothe number af equity shares held by the sharelvalders: 

NOTE: 7 Other Equity 

Sir, Ne Particulars 

Surplus (Profitd& Loss Accmunt) . 

flalance brenght forward from provious yrar (8.132/182) 

Adib Profit far the period = 91,770 

Total in —_ 
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CITIZEN INFOLINE LIMITED 
Notes Forming Integral Part of the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

NOTE : # Provision (Non-Current) Tin Lakhs Tin Lake 

Sr.No Particulars ( Gurrant¥ear | Previous vear 

Grahvity Payable r — ae 0 

- Leave Encashment a a 

Total in? —= ——nT o 

NOTE: 9 Trades Payable in Lakhs Ein Linkhes 

Sr, Nev Particulars  Ciirrent'Year | Previous Year 

- | Total Outstandiag dues of MSME Payables a " = oe 
Total (a) 0 

Total Outstanding dues of other than MoME Payables = “t 

= For Gaods & Services: ee “a 0 
- For Expenses = v 0 

‘Total (b) ———— 0 
ry hi 

—_— 

Total in t oO 

NOTE: 10 Other Financial Liahilittes (Qorrent} Fin Lakhs 

‘StvNo Particulars ‘| Previous Year 

Achainice recelyed frat Parties - — u 

Total in® - = 2 

NOTE: 11 Provisions (Current Liabilities) Tin Lakhs 

Sr.No Particulars | Previous Year 

EPE Payable 1.500 

ESIC Payable ~ 373 a1 
Others 
Auditor's Remuneration Payable 2O0o)- 20,th00 
Expenses Payable: 4.480 Looe, a7 

Total int — 1,028,298 

NOTE: 12 Current Tax Linbilities © in Lakhs Fin Lakhs 

Sr. Na Particulars [ 

‘Professional tax Payable 
- POS: Payable 

Total in® E— =~ ii4o03 



CITIZEN INFOLINE LIMITED 
Notes Forming Integral Part of the Financial Statements as an 31 March 2024 

NOTE: 19 - Revenue from Operations © iry Lakhs Tin Lakhs 

Sr, No Particulars _ Current Fear Previous Year 

Receipt from Information Services & Yellow Page 0 

Directory 

Solar Panel Sale 23749512 
Total in® 23749512 

NOTE : 14 Other Income in Lakhs Tin Lakhs 

Sr.No Particulars Current Year Previous Year 

interest on Loanand Advances 3811869 3269669 
- | intereston L.Tax Refund ol 33649 

Total in = 3811869] 3404318 

NOTE: 15 Employement Benefit Expenses tin Lakhs Tin Lakhs 

Sr.No Particulars Current Year Previous Year 

Contribution te BSI 3686 3721 
- jEmplovee Welfire Expense 7B 6032 

- |Gratuity Expenses Oo 0 

Contribution to PF = 14914 12632 
- |Salary, Allowance and Pergquisires P “3205307 43241160 

Total in = i == 3264660 

NOTE; 15.1 Director Remuneration Tin Lakhs Tin Lakhs: 

$r. Na Particulars = Current Year - =, ] Previous Year 

Salary, Aliowance ind Perquisites 1878000 1B7B000 

Total in® ~ in7a000) 1878000 

NOTE: 16 Financial Cost tin Lakhs Tin Lakhs 

Sr.No Particulars Current Year Previous Year 

Interest Expenses 1149 3428 

- | Bank Charges & Commission Expenses = 850 597 

Total in ® — 7699] 4025 

NOTE: 17 Depreciation & Amortised Cost tin Lakhs Tin Lakhs 

Sr.No Particulars "Current Year Previous Year 

- (|Depreciation ! . a 
- [Amortization \ it) 

Total in = —— 0 
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CITIZEN INFOLINE LIMITED 
Notes Forming Integral Part of the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

NOTE: 18 Other Expenses in Latehs fin Likhs 
RS TP i ae 

Sr.No Particulars ’ Previous Year 

* Advertisement & Publicity Po 30786 20856 

- |Amalgmation Expenses 108000] 1oa000 
-  |Electricity Expenses- . 0 24450 

= |Internet Expenses “9499 12495 
Office Expesnes | 7331 6572 
Professional & Legal Fees 189850 305750 

- |Rent, Rate & Taxes 2000 2000 
- |Steck Exchange & R& T Expenses 537389 4Bb225 
- {Software & Software Service Charges Expenses = 2222 

Telephone Expenses 3695) 9106 

. | Travelling Expenses 0 17346 

Vehicle Expenses 0 4000 

| Yellow Pages Directory and Other Expenses > 6 1546 
Web site development Expenses =. a it) 45120 

Total in® ____ 888516) 1056688 
Tin Lakhs Tin Lakhs 

NOTE: 18.1 Auditor Remunerations 

Sr. No Particulars. Current Year Previous Year 

- |For Audit Fees 20000 20000 
- |Other Consultancy Fees 0 0 

Total in? 20000] | 20000 
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CITIZEN INFOLINE LIMITED 
Notes Forming Integral Part of the Financial Statements as on 31 March 2024 

NOTE ; 13 - Revenue from Operations Tin bakhs Tin Lakhs 

Sr.No Particulars Current Year’ Previous Year 

Receipt from information Services & Yellow Page 0 

Directory 

Solar Panel Sale 23749512 
Total in 23749512 

NOTE: 14 Other Income Tin Lakhs Tin Lakhs 

Sr. No Particulars Current Year: Previous Year 

- | Interest on Loan and Advances 9811869 3269669 
-  |interestan UTax Refund eee || 33649 

Total int _ 3811869] 3303318 

NOTE: 15 Employement Benefit Expenses Tin Lakhs Tin Lakhs 

Sr.No Particulars Current Year Previous Year 

Contribution to RST 3686) af2l 

- JEmployee Welfare Expense —_ i 6032 
Gratuity Expenses — p i] 
Contribution ta PF P 4314 12632 
Salary, Allowance and Perquisites ‘ 3205307 3241160 

Total in ¥ _______ sazagerl 3264660 

NOTE: 15.1 Director Remuneration Tin Laktis Tin Lakhs 

Sr. No Particulars Current Year Previous Year 

- |Salary, Allowance and Perquisites rrr ‘ya72000 1878000 

Totalin® 1878000] 1878000 

NOTE: 176 Financial Cost t in Lakhs Tin Lakhs 

Sr.No Particulars Current Yeor Previous Year 

= Interest Expenses 1y49 3428 
- |Bank Charges & Commission Expenses 550) 5o7 

Total in = 1699) 4025 

NOTE: 17 Depreciation & Amortised Cost Tin Lakhs Tin Lakhs 

Sr. No Particulars ‘Current Year Previous Year 

Depreciation 0 0 

Amortization 0 0 

Total in ® ——" . 
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CITIZEN INFOLINE LIMITED 

Notes Forming Integral Part of the Financial Statements as an 31 March 2024 

NOTE: 18 Other Expenses Tin Lakhs Tin Lakhs 

Sr. No Particulars Previous Year 

- |Advertisement & Publicity 29856 

- |Amalgmation Expenses 108000 

Electricity Expenses: 24450 

- [internet Expenses 12495 

- Office Expesnes 6572 

- |Professional & Legal Fees 305750 

- |Rent, Rate & Taxes 2000 

- |Stock Exchange & B& T Expenses 488225 

Software & Software Service Charges Expenses. 2222 

Telephone Expenses 9106 

- |Travelling Expenses 17346 

. |Vehicle Expenses 4000 

-  |Vellow Pages Directory and Other Expenses 1546 

- |Welrsite development Expenses. 45120 

Total in? 1056688 

Tin Lakhs 

NOTE: 18.1 Auditor Remunerations 

Sr.No Particulars Previous Year 

~ |For Audit Fees 20000 

- |Other Consultancy Fees 0 

Total in % 20000 
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19. Citizen Infoline Limited was incorporated in the year 1994. Citizen's yellow pages have been jn the local'search and 

print media. The Gompany has diversified into the trading of Solar Panels and allied goods since 2020-21, It has 
various branches across the state of Gujarat, 

20. Figures of previous year have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary. 

21. The information regarding suppliers Kolding permanent registration certificate as a small-scale industrial 
undertaking-or-as.an ancillary Industrial undertaking issued by the Directorate of Industries of the state is not 

avallable. In the abseace of such information, the amount and interest due‘as perthe Interest on delayed payments 

to Small-and ‘Ancillary Industries Act, 1993 1s not ascertainable, There is-io claim for payment of interest under the 
law above, 

22. Disclosures under Section 22 of Micro, Small and Ancillary industries Act, 2006 can be considered on receiving 
relevant information fram suppliers who are covered under the act Is received. 

23. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

PARTICULARS 2024-24(Rs.) 2022-23 (Rs.) 

Foreign Exchange Earnings — — 

Foreign Exchange Outgo = a 

Foreign Exchange Outgo (Capital Goods) se ad 

24, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES. 

® The basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 

a) The financial statements have been prepared wnder the historical cost convention by the generally accepted 
accounting principles on going concern basis and provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as adapted consistently by 

the company. The accounts are materially complying with Actounting Standards issued by The Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India. 

b) The company generally follows a mercantile system of accounting and recognizes significant items of income and 
expenditure on accrual basis; However, Municipal Taw is recognized on Cash Basis. 

*® Disclosure af Accounting Policies 

The Accounting Principles and policies, recdgnived as appropriate for measurement and reporting of the financial 

performance and the financial position on Accrual Basis except otherwise disclosed using historical cost i.e, not taking 

Inte account changing money values/impact of inflation, are applied in the preparation of the financial statement and 
those which are considered material to the affairs. are suitably disclosed. The statement on Significant Accounting policy 

excludes disclosures regarding Accounting Standards In respect of which there are no material transactions during the 

year. 

® Valuation of Inventories 

The Company operates in the service industry. Therefore, it does not have any inventory, 

" Current versus non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and llabilities in the balance sheet based on current non-current classification, An asset 

Expected tu be reatized orintended to be-sold or consumed in the nurmel operating cyele 
Held primarily for trading 

Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, ar 

Cash or cash equivalent Unless restricted from being exchanged or used ta settle a liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period. 
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All other-assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 

© Ibis expected to be settied in the normal operating cycle 

Itis held primarily fer trading 

itis due to be settied within twelve months after the reporting period,or 

There is no unconditional right to-defer the settlement of the liability for at feast twelve months after the 

reporting period. 

o 
La]

 
o 

Deferred tax ansets.and liabilities are classified as nen-current assets and llabilities, 

The company classifies all other labilities as non-current, The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of 
assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The company has identified twelve months as 

its operating cycle. 

® Functional and Presentation Currency 

These standalone financial stetements ate presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company. 

All financial information presented in Indian rupees has been rounded to the nearest rupees, except otherwise 

indicated. 

® Employee Benefits 

() Short-term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the 
amount expected to be paid If the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount 

as a result-of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can: be estimated reliably. 

(ii) Defined contribution plans 

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service Is provided and 

the Company will have no-legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Prepaid contributions are 
recognized as. an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments Is available. 

(li) Defined benefit plans 

The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by 
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, 

discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. The calculation of defined benefit 

obligations is performed periodically by an independent qualified actuary using the projected unit credit 
method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognized asset is limited to 
the present value-of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions 
in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given 

to any applicable minimum funding requirements. 

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses and the return 

on pian assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized 
immediately in other comprehensive income (OCI), Net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability 

(asset}.is computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined |lability (asset), Net interest 

expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in Statement of Profit.and Loss, 

When the benefits of 2 plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in the benefit that relates to 
past service or the gain of loss. on curtailment is recognized immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss, The Company 

recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs. 

(iv) Other long-term employee benefits 

* The Company's net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees 

have earned in return for their-service In the current anc prior periods, The obligation is measured by a penodical 

independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Re-measurementare recognized in Statement 
of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise 



« Fair value measurement 

The Company measures financial assets) at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be 
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
Measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or 
transfer the lability takes place either: ; 

6 lathe principal market forthe asset or liability, ar 
© Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal-or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset ora lability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act In thelr economic best interest, A fair value 
Measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a marker particioant’s ability to generate economic benefits 
by using the asset in its highest and best use'ar by selling it'ta another market participant that would use the asset in its 
highest and best use, 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances.and for Which sufficient data are 
available to medsure fair value, maximizing the wse of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of 
unobservable inputs: 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured of disclosed in the financial statements. are categorized within 
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurementas a whole: 

o Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices [n-active markets'for icentical-assets or liabilities 
© Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that Is significant to the fair value measurement 

is directly or indirectly observable 
& Level 3. Valuation techniques for which the lowest level Input that is significant to the fair value measurement 

is Undbservable 

Tor assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements en a recurring basis, the Company determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest 
level input that is significant to the falr value measurement as a whole} at the end of each reporting period. 

The Company management determines the policies and procedures for recurring and non-recurring fair value 
Measurement. Involvement of external valuers is decided Upan annually by Company management, The management 
decodes after discussion With external valuers about valuation technique and Inputs 'to use for each case, 

Ateach reporting date, the Company's nanagement analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which 
@re required to be re-measured or ré-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies, For this analysis, the Company 
verifies the major inputs spptied In the latest valuation by agreeing on the infarmation in the valuation computation ta 
contracts and other relevant documents. 

The Company, in conjunction with the Company's external valuers, also Compares the change In the fair value of each 
asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable. For fair value 
disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities Hy the nature, characteristics and risks of the 
asset or lability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

® Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probabie that the econamic benefits will flow to the Company and that the 
“Tevenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue Is measured at the falr value 
of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account centractually defined terms of payment and excluding 
taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific 
(teria, Le., whether it has exposure to the significant risks and rewards associated with the sale of goads or the 

: 2 of services, to determine if it leacting as a principal or as an agent. 

recognized, net of trade discounts, goods and service tax or other taxes, as applicable, 
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fi) Sale of goods 

Revenue from sale of poods Is: recognized inthe statement of profit and loss when the significant risks and rewards in 

respect-of ownership of goods have been transferred to the buyer as per the terms of the respective sales order and 

the Company neither continuing managerial Involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective 
contro! over the goods sald, Revenue from the sale of goods is measured-at the fair value of the consideration received 

or receivable, netof retums and allowances and discounts. 

(ii) Interest Income 

For all financial assets njeasured either at amortized cost, interest income is recorted using the effective interest rate 

(EIR). EIR isthe rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments of receipts over the expected life of the 

financial instrument ora shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or the 

amortized-costof a financial liabiliby, When calculating the effective interest rate, the group estimates the expected 

cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call 
and similar optiens} but-dees.not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income ts included in other income in the 

Statement-of profit and loss. 

(iil) Dividend Income 

Dividend income trom investments is recognized when the right ta receive the payment is established which is generally 

when shareholders approve the dividend, 

® Property, Plant and Equipment & Depreciation 

(i) Recognition and Measurement 

items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less: accumulated depreciation and impairment 

losses if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises - its purchase price, including 

import duties and non-refundable purchase tawes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates. - Any costs are 
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it te be capable of 
operating in the manner intended by management. - the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and 

removing the item and restoring the site on which itis located, the obligation for which the Compeny incurs 

either when the itemris acquired or as a consequence of having used the item during a particular period for 
purposes other than te produce inventories during that period. Income and expenses related to the incidental 

operations, not necessary to bring the item to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 

operating in the mannerintended by management, are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, If significant 

parts ofan item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment, Any gain or loss on disposal of an item 

of property, plant and equipment is.recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. Capital work-in-progress in 

respect of assets which are not ready for their intended use are carried at cost, comprising of direct costs, 

related incidental expenses and attributable interest. 

(i) Subsequent Expenditure 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with 

the expenditure will flaw to the Company. 

(ii) Depreciation 

The depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated 
residual value, Depreciation on property, plant and equipment of the Company has been provided on the 

straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule fl to the Act, except in respect of the following 
categories of assets, in whose-case the life of the assets has been assessed as under based on independent 

technical evaluation.and management's assessment thereof, taking into account the nature of the asset, the 
estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated 
technological changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc, 

Useful life is taken as per Schedule || of Companies. Act, 2013, 



Depreciation method, useful life and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted jf 

appropriate. Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis, Le, from (up ta) the date on 
whith atset is ready for use (disposed of). 

® Intangible Assets 

{i} Recognition and Measurement: 

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses if any, The cost of an 

intangible asset comprises of its. purchase price, including any import duties and other taxes (other than those 
subsequently recoverabte from the taxing authorities), and any directly attributable expenditure on making the 
asset ready for its iqtended use. Expenditure on research and development eligible for capitalization are carried 

a5 Intangible assets Under development where such assets are not yet ready for their intended use 

(ii) Subsequent Expenditure 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only ifit is probable that the future economic benefits associated with 

the expenditure will flow to the Company. 

(iii) Amortization 

Intangible assets are amortized aver their estimated usefyl life on Straight Line Method 
The estimated useful lives of intangible assets and the amortization period are reviewed at the end of each 

financial year, and the amortization method is revised to reflect the changed pattern if any 

® WNon-current assets held for sale 

Assets are classified as held for sale and stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value fewer costs to 
sell if the asset is available for immediate sale-and its.sale is highly probable, Such assets.or group of assets are 

presented separately in the Balance Sheet as “Assets Classified as Held for Sale". Once classified as held for 

sale, intangible assets.and property, plant and equipment are no longer amortived or depreciated, 

® Impairment of assets 

The carrying values-of assets/cash penerating units-at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment if 

any indleation of impairment exists. The following Intangible assets are tested for impairment-each financial 
year even if there is.no indication that the asset is impaired: 

1) at intangible asset that |s not yet avallable for use; and 
li) oan intangible asset that is having an indefinite useful life. 

Ifthe carrying amount of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment is recognized 

for such excess amdunt. The impainmentdoss is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case.any impairment loss of the rewalued asset is 
treated'as a revaluation decrease to the extent a revaluation reserve is available for that asset. The recoverable 

amount isthe greater of the net selling price and their value in-use, The value in use fs arrived at by discounting 

the future cash flows to their present value based on an appropriate discount factor, When there is indication 
that an impairment loss recognized for an asset (other than a revalued asset) in earlier accounting periods no 

longer exists or may have decreased, such reversal.of impairment loss is. recognized in the Statement of Profit 

and Loss, to the extent the amount was previously charged to the Staternent of Profit and Loss. In the case of 
revalued assets, such reversal is not recognized, 

© Foreign Currency Transactions 

Transactions in foreign currency ate recorded at the approximate exchange. rate. prevalling on the date of 
transactions. Foreign currency monetary assets and monetary liabilities not covered by forwarding exchange 

contracts are translated at year-end exchange rates and protit and loss so determined and realized exchange 
gains/losses are recognized in purchase proceed of imports, During the year the there is nil Foreign Exchange 

Fluctuations. 

ernment Grants and Subsidies 

The company recognizes the Government grants only when there is reasonable assurance that: 

a) The enterprise will comply with the conditions attached to them and 
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b) = The grant will be received. 
During the year, the company has not recelved any prant/subsidy, 

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 

A provision is recognized when the Company has & present obligation as a result of past events, and it is 

probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable 
estimate can be made, If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using an 

appropriate discount rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the lability. When discounting 

irused, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost, 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Notes to the Standalone Financial Staternents. Contingent liabilities 

are disclosed for 

i} possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events nat wholly within the control of the 

Company, or 

iW present obligations-arising from past events where it is nat probable that an outflow of resources will 

be required to-settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be 

made 

Borrowing costs. 

Borrowing costs are interest, and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the berrowing of funds 

and is measured concerning the effective interest rate {EIR} applicable to the respective borrowing, Borrowing costs 

include interest costs measured at EIR and exchange differences arising fram foreign currency borrowings to the 

extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cast. 

Borrowing costs, allocated to qualifying assets, about the period from commencement of activities relating to 

construction/development of the qualifying asset up to the date of capitalization of such asset are added to the 
cost of the assets. Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Staterent of Profit and Loss 
during extended peridds when active development activity on the qualifying assets |s interrupted, All other 

borrowing costs. are recognized as an expense In the period which they are incurred, 

Earnings per share 

Basic earings per share are computed by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average numberof equity . 
Shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is 
adjusted for the events for bonus issue, bonus element inva rights issue to existing shareholders, share’split and 
Diluted eatnings per share. is computed by dividing the profit (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and 

other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating ta the dilutive potential equity shares, 

by the weighted average number of equity shares corisidered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted 

average number of equity shares whith could have been jssued on conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

Insurance claims: 

Insurance claims are accounted for by claims admitted/expected to be admitted and to the extent that the amount 
recoverable can be measured reliably and It is reasonable to expect the ultimate collection 

Goods and Services tax input credit: 

Goods and Services tax input credit is accounted for in the books in the period In which the underlying service 

recelyved is accounted and when there is reasonable certainty in avalling/ utillzing the credits 

Segment reporting: 

The Company operates in-one reportable business segment, i.e. “Trading in Solar Panels” Hence as per Ind AS 108, 

disclosers of the segment Is not applicable to it. 



® Taxes on Income 

Provision for current income taxes Is ade on taxable income at the rate applicable to the relevant assessment 

year. Deferred taxes are recognized for future tax consequences attributable to timings difference between the 

financial statements, determination of income and their recognition for tax purpose. The effect on deferred tax 

assets and llabilities of a change in ta# rates is recognized for tax purposes. The effect on deferred tax assets and 

jiabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in Profit and Loss Account using the tax rates and tax laws that have 

been enacted orsubstantively enacted by balance sheet date. 

Deferred tax assets are recoghized and carried ‘forward only to the extent that there is a virtual certainty of 

realization of such assets, Considering this, the company has applied for provision for deferred tax. 

25, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ASSUMPTIONS 

The preparations of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, 

estimates and aasurmpuioas that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and llabilities, and 

accompanying disclosures including disclosures of contingent liabilities, Uncertainty about these assumptions may result 

in-an outcome that requires a material adjustment -to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in 3 future 

period. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experiences and various other factors. that 

are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances existing when the financial statements were prepared, The 

estimates and assumptions are-reviewedor the ongoing basis. The revision to accounting estimates is recognized |n the 

year in which the estimates are revised and in any future affected, 

A) ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTION 

The key assumptions that concerning the future and other key sources of estimation on reporting date, which 

may cause a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, 

are listed below, The company based its estimates.and assumptions oh parameters available when financial 

statements are. made. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future circumstances may change due to 

market change or circumstances arising beyond the control of the company, 

{i) Useful lives of property, plant and Equipment 

The company reviews the useful life of its property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. 

(ii) Defined Benefit Plans 

the cost of defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment and the present value of the gratulty 

obligations are determined using actuarial valuations, An actuary makes assumptions which may differ fram 

the actual developments in the future. These include the determination of discount rate, future salary mncrease, 

mortality rate. Que to the complexity of the valuations, a defined benefit obligation ts highly sensitive changes 

in these assumptions, All assumptions are raviewed at each reporting date. 

The parameter most subject to change ls the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the 

management considers the interest rates of government bonds. 

The mértality rate ts based on publicly available mortality tables of India. Future salary and gratuity increase are 

based on expected future inflation rates In India. 

Details of Gratuity valuations are given in Note 17. 

(iii) Provision for inventories 

Provision is made in the finantial statements for slaw and non-moving Inventories based on estimate regarding 

their usability. 

(iv) Impairment of Trade Receivables 

To measure lifetime expected tredit loss allowances of trade receivables, the company has used ‘practical 

expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109, The expected credit loss allowance |s made on a provision matrix 

Med on experence and adjusted for forward-looking information. 



(v) Impairment af other financial assets 

The impairmentof lass-of other financial assets is based on an assumption about the risk of default coupled 
with past experiences and information about the future. 

Employee Benefit 

{a) Defined Contribution Plans 

1. Provident Fund/Employee's Pension Fund 
2. Employee's State Insurance 

The company has recognized following expense has been recognized in the Profit and Loss account. 

Particulars 2023-24 (Rs) 2022-23 (Rs) 

Employer's Contribution to PF/Pension Fund 8,314 6,632 

Employer's Contribution to ES! 3,686 ciral 

(b) Defined Benefit Pian 

Gratuity (included in Employee Benéfit-cost in Note 20 of the financial statement) 

Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees as provisions of Payment of Gratuity Act,.1972. The benefit will be 

paid at the.time of separation as per the tenure of employment and salary of the employee. 

The most recent actuarial Valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for 

gratuity were carried out as at March 31, 2024, The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related 

current service cost and past service cost were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Methad. 

26, Related Party Disclosure 

A. List of Related Parties and Relations 
1. Subsidiaries, Fellow Subsidiaries and Associates 

- Citizen Exports Private Limited 

- (Citizen Solar Private Limited 

« Key Management Personnel 

=Omprakash L. Jain 
- Ravindra ©. Jain 

~ Kasturi R. Jain 

2, List of Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel and Enterprise over which Key Management Personnel and 
their relative excessive significant influence with whom transaction have taken place during the year 

- Opera Exports. Private Limited. 

B, Transactions with Related Parties: - 
(Rupees in Lakhs) 

Particulars Subsidiaries, Fellow | Key Management | List of Relatives of Key 
Subsidiaries and | Personnel Managerial Personnel 

Associates and Enterprise 

2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 

Purchase of Goods 388.21 226.35 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00, 

Sale of service 392.02 237,50 6.00 10,00 0.00 0.00 

| Receiving of services 0.60 0.00 17.78 17,78 0,00 0.00, 

Finance Charges (including 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,00 (0,00 0.00 

loans and equity contribution 

in cash or kind given) 

Interest Received 0.39 1.24 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,24 

Finance (including loans given) 138.50 150.21 0.00 0.00 6.00: 25,00 

4, Any Other 0.00 00, | 0.09 0.00 0.00 0.00 



27. Earnings Per Share 

Basic Earnings per Share (EPS) are disclosed in the profit. and loss account. There are no Diluted Earnings per 

Share as there are no dilutive potential equity shares, 

Particulars This year Last Year 
Earnings Available for share holders (Rs) 75097 Si77a 

Weighted average of Equity Shares 53,97,300 53,977,400 

Basic & diluted EPS 0.01 0.02 

The face value of a share Rs.10/- Rs. 10/- 

28. FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES 

(A) The Carrying valve and fair value of financial assets/liability by each category are as follows 
The notes referred to above form. an integral part of Accounts. (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars Catrying amount of financial | Fair Value of the financial assets! 
assets/liabilities lrabilities 

Financial assets/liabilities at amortized | As at March 31, | As at March | As at March 31, | As at March 31, 
cast 2024 31, 2023 2024 20273 

4. Non-Current 

Deposits 407.45 413,45 402.45 413.35 

Other financial assets 44,00 44.00 44,00 44,00 

2; Current Assets 

Trade and Other Receivables 0..00 0.00 6.00 0.00 

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Loy 1.59 1.07 1,59 

Loans and Advances: 10.27 6.46 10:27 6.46 

Other financial assets 3.24 432 3.24 432 
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost 

1, Current 

Trade Payables 0.00 6.00 0.00 0.00 

Other Financial abilities 0.00 0:09 0.00 0,00 
2. Non-Current 

Other Financial Assets/ lability 0.00 6.00 0.00 6.00 

29. There is no. contingent Vfability outstanding'on 34 March 2024 and 34 March 2023. 

30. Financial risk management: 

The Company has exposure-to the following risks arising from financial instruments: - 

e Credit risk; 

= — Liquidity risk; 
= Markel risk 

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk 

management framework, The board of directors has established the Risk Management Committee, which it responsible 
for developing and monitoring the Company‘s risk management policies. The committee reports to the board of 

directors on its activities. 

The Cormany’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyses the-risks faced by the Company, to 
set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits, Risk management policies and 
systems are reviewed periodically to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, 
through its tralning, standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment In 

dit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies 

cedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework about the risks faced by the Company. 

dit committee js assisted in its. aversight role by internal, audit, Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hec 
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reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to.the audit committee, 

a) Credit risk: 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to 

meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and investment 

securities. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the 
creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the narmal course of business. The Company 

establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of 

trade and other receivables and investments. Trade receivables The Company's exposure ta credit risk is influenced 
mainty by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the customer, including the default risk 
of the industry and country in which the customer operates, alsa influences credit risk assessment. Credit ‘risk is 

managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitering the creditworthiness of 
customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business 

Summary of Companies Exposure to the credit risk as follows. (Bs) 

At At 
Particulars: 

Bist March 2024 31st March 2023 

Past dues not impaired 0.00 0.00 

Not past dues not Impaired 0.00 0.00 

Total in = 0.00 0.00 

Expected credit lass assessment The Company allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on a variety of data 
that Is determined to be predictive of the risk of loss (e.g, timeliness of payments, available press information etc.) and 

applying experienced credit judgment. 

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the Company to determine 
incurred and expected credit losses. Historical trends-of impainment of trade receivables do not reflect any significant 

credit losses. Given that the macroeconomic indicators affecting customers of the Company have not undergone any 

substantial change, the Company expects the historical trend of minimal credit losses to continue 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Asat the year end, the Company held cashand cash equivalents of Rs. 1,07,227 /- (previous year Rs. 1,58,957/-). 

The cash equivalents are held with banks. 

Gther financial assets 

Other financial assets are neither past due nor impaired. 

b) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk isthe risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial 

liabilities that are settled by delivering cash er another financial asset, The Company's approach to managing liquidity is 

to ensure, as far-as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both 

normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation, 

The Company enjoys an overdraft limit from the bank. 

The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit which carry no/low mark to market risks. The Company 
meoniters funding options available in the debt and capital markets to maintaining financial flexibility. 

Exposure to liquidity risk 

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date The amounts are 
gross and undiscounted and Include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements. 

The details of contractual maturities. of significant liabilities as of 31 March 2024 follaw, 



Particulars ‘Carrying less than | 1-3 3-5 More than | Total 
Amount one year years years five years 

Trade Payable (See Note 13) NIL NIL. NIL NIL NIL NIL 
Other Current Financial Liabilities (See | 22:350 23,250 0.00 0.00 0.00 23,350 
Note 12,14 &.16) 
Total 23,350 23,350 0.00 0.00 0.00 23,350 

c) Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, Interest rates and equity prices — 

will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to all 

market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables and long-term debt, We 
are exposed to market risk primarily related to interest rate change, However, it does not constitute a significant risk, 

Hence, the sensitive analysis is not given 

(i) Currency risk 

The Company is exposed to currency risk on account of its operations with other countries. The functional currency of 
the Company is Indian Rupes, The exchange rate between the Indian rupee and foreign currencies has changed 

substantially in recent periods and may continue to fluctuate in the future. However, the overall impact of foreign 

currency risk on the financial statement is not significant, 

Exposure to Currency risk Following is the currency profile-of non-derivative financial assets and financial liabilities: 

Particulars Amount as on | Amount as on 
31.03.2024(5) 31.03.2023 ($) 

Financial Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents Nil Nil 
Trade Receivables Nil Nil 

Other Current Assets Nil Nil 

Total Nil Nu 

financial Liabilities 

Trade Payables Nil Nil 
Current Borrowings Nil Nil 

Other current financial liabilities Nil Nil 

Net Exposure Nil Nil 

Sensitivity analysis 

A possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against US dollars at March 41 would have affected the 
measurement of financial instruments denominated in US dollars and affected equity and profit.or loss.by the amounts 
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular, interest rates, remain constant and ignores 

any impact of forecast sales and purchases, 

Particulars Profit (Loss) for Profit (Loss) for 
FY 2023-24 F¥ 2022-23 

Ls Movement Strengthening Weakening | Strengthening Weakening 
Usb Mil Nil Nil Nil 

d) Interest rate risk 

‘Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. The fait value interest rate risk 
isthe risk of changes in fair values of fixed interest-bearing financial assets or borrowings because of fluctuations in the 

interest rates if such assets/borrowings are measured at fair value through profit or loss, The cash flow interest rate risk 
the risk that the future cash flows of floating interest-bearing borrowings will fluctuate because of fluctuations in the 

Werest rates, Exposure to interest rate risk Company's interest rate risk arises from borrowings and finance lease 

ytions, The interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing borrowings is a5 fallows: 
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| Particulars — As on | As on 

31,03.2024 31.03.2023 

Non-Current- Borrowings 
- Fixed Rate Borrowings Nil Nil 

>  Varlable Rate Borrowings Nil Nil 

Current Borrowings 

- Fixed Rate Borrowings Nil Nil 
- Variable Rate Borrowings Nil Nil 

Tatal Nil Nil 

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments 

The Company does not account for any fixed-rate borrowings at fair value through profit or loss, Therefore, a change in 
Interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss. 

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments 

A possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) profit or 
loss by the amounts shawn below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in-particular, foreign currency exchange 

fates, remain constant. 

Particulars Profit (Loss) for Prafit (Loss) for 
F¥ 2023-24 FY 2022-23 

100 bps Movement Increase Decrease lncrease | Decrease 

Variable Rate Borrowings Nil Nil fil Nil 

The risk estimates provided assumea change of 100 basis points interest rate for the interest rate benchmark as 
applicable to the borrowings summarized above. This calculation also assumes that the change occurs at the balance 
sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as-at that date, The period end balances are 

not necessarily representative of the average debt-outstanding during the period, 

(e) Commodity rate risk 

The Company's-operating activities involve the provision of services. Hence, it is not exposed to the commodity risk, 

31, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

For the Company's capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity capital and all other equity 

reserves attributable to the equity holders of the company. The primary objective of the capital policy of the company 

to safeguard the Company's ability to remain a going concern and maximize the shareholder value. 

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments inthe light of changes in economic conditions, 

annual operating plans and long-term and other strategic investment plans. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, 
the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to the shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new 

shares, The current capital structure is through equity with no financing through borrowings. The company is not subject 
to any externally imposed capital requirements. 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended on 31 March 
2024 and.4i1 March 2023. 

22. There are no immovable properties whose title deeds are not held in the name of company. 
33. The Company has not revalued it’s revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year, 

34. No fresh Loans and Advances are granted to Directors, KMPs, Promoters and related parties as defined under 
Companies Act, 2013. 

35. There is no capital in progress during the year. 
“36. There is no intangible assets. during the development. 
37. There are no proceedings being initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under 

the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

38, The Company is not required to file quarterly returns or statements of currant assets with banks or financial 

institutions. 
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39, The Comipany is not declared as willful defaulter by the Bank or financial institutions or any other fender. 

40. ‘The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of Companies Act, 2013, 
41, There is no registration or satisfaction of charge yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies. 

42. The provisions of Section 2(87) read with Companies (Restriction on Number of Layers) Rules, 2017 is not applicable 
to the company, 

43, Ratio-Analysis 
40.1. Current Ratio 

The. current ratio indicates a company’s overall liquidity pasition. It is widely used by banks in making decisions 

regarding the advancing of working capital credit 6 thelr clients, Both of these numbers can be found in a Company's 

balance sheet. 

Current Ratio = Total Current Assets/Total Current Liabilities 

Current Ratio for FY 2023-24 is 25.84 times (PY 2022-23. - 1,19) times. Theres nosignificant change in the clirrent ratio 

during the year. 

40,2, Debt Equity Ratio, 

Debt-to-equity ratio compares a Company's total debt to ‘shareholders equity. Both of lhese numbers can be found ina 

Company's balance sheet. 

Debt Equity Ratio = Total Gebt* L00/Share Holder's Equity. 

Debt Equity Ratio for FY 2024-24 is Nil (PY 2022-23 — Wil}. There is-no significant change in the ratio. 

40,3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio 

Debt Service coverage ratio Is usect to analyses the firm's ability to payolf current interest and instalments, 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings available for Debt Service/Debt Service: 

Earning for Debt Service =Net Profit after taxes + Norrcash aperating expenses Ike depreciation and other 

amortizatlons+ Interest + otheradjustments like lass onsale of Fixed assets etc. 

Cebt service = Interest & Lease Payments-+ Principal Repayments. No repayments is considered for loan repayable on 
demands, 

“Net Profit.atter tax” means reported-amount of “Profit/ (loss) for the period” and it does notinclude items of other 

comprehensive incane. 

The Debt Service Coverage Ratio for FY 2023-24 is Nil (PY2022-23 Nil). There is no significant change in the ratio. 

40.4. Return on Equity (ROE) 

it measures the profitability of equity funds invested in the Company. The ratio reveals how profitability of the equity- 
holders’ funds have been utilized by the Company. It also measures the percentage return generated to equity-holders, 
The ratio is computed as: 

ROE = Net Profit-atter Taxes-Preference Dividend (if any)"100/ Average Shareholder’s Eouity 

The Return an Equity for F¥ 2023-24 0.17% (PY 2022-23 0.20%), The change in ratio js due to reduction in loss and 

increase In profit, 

40.5: Inventory Turnover Ratio 

This ratio alse kewin-as stock tumaver ratio and itestablishes.the relationship between the cost of goods sold during 

the period or sales during the period and average invertory held during the period. it measures the efficiency with 

which a. Company utilizes or manages its inventory, = 

inventory Turnover Ratio = Sales/Average Inveritory 

Average Inventory = (Opening Inventory + Closing Inventory}/2 

Inventory Turnover Ratia for FY 2023-24 fs Nil times (PY 2022-23 — Nil times}. 

There 6 no tlpnificant change Inthe ratio. 

SS 40.6. Trade receivable Turnover Ratio 

t measures the efficiency at which the firm ts managing the recenvables_ 
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Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio = Met Credit Sales/Average Accounts Receivable 

Net credit sales consist of grass creditsales minus sales return, 

Trade receivables includes sundry debtors-and bill's receivables Average trade debtors = (Opening + Closing balance / 2 

Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio is FY 2023-24 Is NIL in (PY 2022-23 — Nil). The Change is. due to. changed credit policy of 
the company. 

40.7. Trade Payables. Turnover Ratio 

ttindicates the number of times sundry creditors have been paid during a period. {ts caleulated to. judge the 
requirements of cash for paying sundry creditors. (tis calculated by dividing the net credit purchases by average 

creditors 

Trade Payables Turnower Ratio = Net Credit Purchases/Average Trace Payables 

Net credit purchases consist of gross credit purchases minus purchase return, 

Average trade Payables= (Opening + Closing balance / 2 

Trade Payable Turnover Ratio is FY 2023-24 Nil times (PY 2022-23 — 66.61 times). The Change is due to changed credit 
policy of the company. 

40.8. Net Capital Turnover Matic 

It indicates.a company's effectiveness In using its working capital The working capital turnover ratio le calculated as 

follows: Net Sales divided by the average amount of working capital during the same period, 

Net Capital Turnover Ratio = Net Sales/ Working Capital 

Net Sales shall be calculated as total sales minus sales returns. Working capital shall be calculated as current assets 
minus current liabilities, 

Net Capital Turnover Ratio FY.2023-24 28.68 times (PY 2022-23 —120.22 times). The change | due lo increased 

turnover, 

40,9. Net Profit Ratio 

it measures relationship between Net profit and Sales of the business, 

Net profit Ratio = Wet profit/Sales 

Net profit.shall be after tax. 

Net'sales shall be calculated as total sales minus sales returns. 

Net profit far FY 2023-24 fs 0.00209 (PY 2022-23 0.0049"), There Is no significant change in the ratia during the year, 

40,10, Return on Capital Employed 

Returyon tapital employed indicates the ability of acampany's managementte generate returns lor bath the debt 

holders and the equity holders. Higher the ratio, more efficiently isthe capital being employed by the company to 

generate returns, 

Return on Capital Employed = Earning Before Interest and Taxes * 100/Capital Employed 

Capital Employed= Tangible Net worth+ Total Debt+ Differed Tax Liability 

The returnan Capital Employed for FY 2023-24 is 0.17%-(PY 2022-23 — 0.20%). The change-1s due to Increase in the 

profit. 

AO... Return on Investrvents 

Return on investment (ROW) is a financial ratio used ta calculate the benefit an investor will receive In relation to their 

investment cost. The higher the ratio, the greater the benefit earned, 

ROL= Cash Profit “100/Total Investments 

Cash Profit = Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses like d 
adjustments like loss on sale of Fixed assets etc. : 

srepiation and other arnartizations + other 
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42. 

43, 

44, 

46. 
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For, Krutesh Patel & Assaciates 

Place : Ahmedabad ‘ tes! 4 Place : Ahmedabad 
‘Date : 16" May 2024 , 

Total Investments = Average Fixed Assets + Closing Balance of Working Capital Balance 

The Average Fixed Assets is. calculated as average of opening Fixed Assets and closing Fixed Assets. The value of fixed 

assets has been taken as per backs net of depreciation. 

The Return on Investments for FY 2023-24 [s-5.79% (PY 2022-23 45.46%). The change is due to increase in the profit. 

The Board has approved the Scheme of amalgamation during the year. The scheme'is pending for approval with BSE 

Limited, The same will be placed before shareholders for approvals, once the same has been approved by the SEB| and 
Stock Exchange, The necessary entries will be made in the books of accounts when the competent authority will approve 

the scheme. 

The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (elther borrowed funds or share premium or any other 

sources or kand of funds} to ahy other perton{s) or entity(ies), Including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the 

understanding (whether recorded in writing.or otherwise) that the Intermediary shalldirectly or indirectly lend or inwest 

in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) 

oF iI} prowitte any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with 

the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall (l) directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Uitimate 

Beneficiaries) of (Il) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

Value of Impartson CIF Value Basis 
Particulars Year 2023-24 Year 2022-23 
Raw Materials Nil Nil 

Components & Spares Nil Nil 

Capltal Gonds Nil Nil 

Total Value ot imported and Incigenous Consumption 

Particulars Year 2023-24 Year 2022-23 
imparted Wil Nil Nil Nil 

indigenous Nil Nil hil Nil 

Total Nal Nil Nil Nil 

Thete is no income which has hot been recorded in the books of accounts has been surrendered or disclosed a5 income 

during the year under the tax assessments iinder Income tax Act, 1961. 

The Company has not traced or invested in virtual currency or crypto currencies during the year: 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTOR 

Mave in. > Fb 
(Omprakash Jain) (Ravindra Jain) 

Managing Director Director 
DIN: 00171365 DIN: 00412684 

Date :16"" May 2024 



ATTENDANCE SLIP 

(CITIZEN INFOLINE LIMITED 

(CIN: L671206G)1994PLC023561) 

Registered Office: ‘411, Sakari, 

Ellisbridge, Ashram Road 
Ahmedabad-380006, 

Email: ace @infoline.com 

Website: www.citizeninfoline.com 

Phone: 079-26585555 

PLEASE FILL.ATTENDANCE SUP AND HANDAT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL 

Joint shareholders may obtain additional Slip at the venue of Meeting 

OP ip* Folio No. 

Client 1D No. of Shares 

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE SHAREHOLDER 

| at this moment record my presence at the 30" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company held on Monday 30% 

September, 2024 at 12.00 noon at through VC/OAVC, 

* Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form 

Signature of Shareholder. Proxy 

FORM OF PROXY 

(Form MGT-11) 

(Under seetion 105(6) of The Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014—Form MGT-11) 

CITIZEN INFOLINE LIMITED 

(CIN: L67120G/1994PLC023561) 
Registered Office: ‘411, Sakar-ll, 

Ellisbridge, Ashram Road 
Ahmedabd-380006, 

Email: acc@infoline.com 
Website: www.citizeninfoling.com 

Phone: 079-26585555. 

Name of the Member(s}: } 
_ Registered Address: | 

E-mail ID; 

Folio Ne. / Client ID: 

DP ID: 

I/We, being the member(s) of shares of the Company, hereby appoint: 

1, Name: Address: 

Email !D: Signature: or failing him; 

2. Narne: Address: 
Email ID: Signature: or failing him; 

3. Name: saan Address: - 

Email 1D: Signature: 

as my/our proxy ta attend and vote{on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 30"Annual General Meeting of 

the Company, to be held on Monday 30" September, 2024 at 12.00 noon at 411, Sakar ll, Ellis Bridge, Ashram Road, 

Ahmedabad-380006 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

Sates pte 



E Voting Slip 

Resolution No. | Resolution Vote (Optional")} (please 

mention no, of shares) 

For | Against 
Ordinary Business: 

1 Ordinary Resolution for consideration and adoption of Audited Financial 

_ Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 

2 Ordinary Resolution for re-appointment of Mr Mitesh Jain as a Director of 

the Company, who retires by rotation 

3 Ordinary Resolution for re-appointment of Mr. Sandeep Jain asa Director 

‘of the Company, who retires by rotation 

Signed this day of , 2024 
Affix Revenue 

Signature of shareholder Stamp not less 

than Re. 0.15 

Signature of Proxy holder(s} 

Note; 

1. This form of proxy to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, 

not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 

2. A person can act asa proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more 

than ten per cent (10%) of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more 

than ten per cent (10%) of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appointa single person 

as a proxy, and such person shall not act asa proxy for any other person or shareholder. 

4, itis optional to put a ‘v" in the appropriate column against the Resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave the 

‘For! or ‘against’ column blank against any or all Resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as 

he/she thinks appropriate, 

4, Aproxy need not be a Member of the Campany. 

5. Inthe case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder willl be sufficient, but the names of all the joint holders 

should be stated. 

& Please complete all details including details of the member(s) in above box before submission. 

7. Appointing a proxy does not prevent-a member from attending the Annual General Meeting in person if he so 

wishes, 
8. The Company reserves the right to ask for identification of the Proxy. 


